
 

Accommodation for Physical Impairments: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments  please notify the City of any special physical 
or language accommodations you may require as far in advance of the meeting as possible   To make arrangements  Contact City Hall at 541 782 2258   
For the hearing impaired  the City’s TTD Number is 541 782 4232  

 
December 3, 2020 
7:00 pm City Council Meeting 
Audio/Video Teleconference 
Willamette Activity Center Room 8 
47674 School Street 
Oakridge OR, 97463 
 
REGULAR SESSION 

 
 
Personnel complaints will not be heard at City Council Meetings and individuals with concerns regarding personnel shall follow 
the Complaint Procedure Policy. Copies are available at every council meeting and at City Hall. 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
3. Roll Call 
4. Additions, Corrections or Adjustments to the Agenda  
5. Public Comment– 30 Minutes 

Individual speakers must be recognized by the presiding officer, provide their name and address, and will be allowed 
up to 3 minutes or less with Council approval. The Council will not engage in any discussion or make any decisions 
based public comment at this time.  The Council may take comments under advisement for discussion and action at 
a future Council meeting.  The Mayor may direct the City Administrator to follow up on comments received. 

6. Mayor Comments / Announcements / Proclamations 
7. Council Comments / Announcements  
8. Consent Agenda 

8.1 Approval of minutes from November 5, 2020 
9. Business from the City Council 
10. Business from the City Administrator 

10.1 CA Update 
10.2 Portland State University Newly Elected Officials Leadership Academy 
10.3 Memorandum of Understanding with the Oakridge Disc Golf Club 

11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees 
11.1  Administration Advisory Committee  
11.2  Parks and Community Services Committee 
11.3  RTMP Committee 

12. Items Removed from the Consent Agenda 
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comments 

13.1 Resolution Adopting the City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 
13.2 Resolution Adopting the City of Oakridge Social Media Policy  

14. Public Hearings 
15. Appointments 

15.1 Planning Commission  
16. Public Comment 
17. Adjourn 

 
This will be a remote participation meeting. Citizens have four ways of attending and commenting: 
1. Use your computer, tablet or smartphone and go to: https://zoom.us/j/3664311610, meeting ID: 3664311610. 
2. Use your telephone and dial: +1 346 248 7799. Meeting ID: 366 431 1610.  
3. Send comments by email to: cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us by 2pm the day of the meeting.  
4. It is not recommended due to COVID precautions, but citizens may can attend in person at the Willamette Activity Center, Room 8. There will be an 
audio and video feed.   

Detailed instructions are available at City Hall, on the city website and the city Facebook page. 





November 5, 2020 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 6 

 
Our first budget meeting is going to be January 12th with the approval of Chairman Gobelman.  Bryan will get in touch with him 
to set up some training. 
 
The warming center is working hard on getting up and going, they have some challenges this year due to COVID, we are able to 
be open after November 14.  They are in need of volunteers, we would like to start engaging our younger community to volunteer. 
 
7. Council Comments / Announcements 
 
Councilor Kinyon- wanted to respond to Sherry to let her know that once our TSP plan is final there is an ordinance update that 
will happen and it will allow us to enforce that rule.   
 
Mayor Holston- she is not certain that this has anything to do with passing the TSP, she asked Bryan to push the Chief a little on 
this and find out. This has been going on for a long time and it needs to be resolved one way or another. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- she did look this up in our TSP and it is part of the plan to implement a truck route. 
 
Sherry Klosterman- that sign has been on Hills Street for over 20 years and the ordinance doesn’t have anything to do with the 
TSP. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- now that we have our Judge back she would like to start the annual review process and she would like to see 
all of the open committee seats posted.  She asked why we are not using our own chipper for the yard debris and how much is it 
going to cost us to rent one? 
 
Bryan- there is an organization up in Portland that we will rent the chipper from, it is a high volume chipper and it can do an 
enormous amount in one day.  To use our chipper would take one individual to feed it and it would take days and days.  When 
we brought the chipper down for the storm damage from 2019 the cost was around $7000-$8000. 
 
8. Consent Agenda 
 
 8.1 City Council minutes October 15, 2020 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to approve the consent agenda.  Councilor Hollett seconded the motion. 
 
McClelland (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), Kinyon (aye), Hollett (aye), Forcum (aye).  Motion carried 5-0 
 
9. Business from the City Council 
 
 9.1 Ordinance 874 Discussion – Sponsor: Dawn Kinyon 
 
Councilor Kinyon- the reason she asked to have this discussion is because a business owner contacted her regarding ordinance 
874.  She would like the council to consider asking the planning commission to update the ordinance.   
 
Rick Yarbrough- he purchased three properties in the uptown area a few years ago, his issue with the current standards is that it 
is from 2004 and he doesn’t see anywhere uptown where these standards have been followed or effective.  In 2017 he wanted 
to improve the look of the old YMCA building and he was hit with these standards that no one else in the uptown has been held 
to. 
 
Mayor Holston- are we just talking about architectural standards or building codes itself?   
 
Rick- the design standards are looking for a certain look for the façade, one standard that is hard to meet is what the windows 
need to look like and to meet that it can get really expensive. 
 
Mayor Holston- does council want to direct the city administrator to have the planning commission to look at the uptown and 
Highway 58 standards, in the mean time we can talk about what our desires would be. 
 
Councilor Hollett- she thought this would be a good project for the OEDAC Committee to work on since they work on economic 
development.   



November 5, 2020 City Council Minutes Page 3 of 6 

 
Bryan- Ordinance 874 is directly in the planning commission’s court and it belongs nowhere else but there. 
 
Mayor Holston- we will start there then and she wanted to caution council that this is not something that happens quickly.   
 
 9.2 Water Tower Signage  
 
Bryan- read the agenda bill. 
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved we do not approve the painting of “Oakridge Welcomes You” on the Highway 58 water tower.  
Councilor Hollett seconded the motion. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- in May of this year we had a motion approved that specifically said to paint the water tower a blank slate and 
then at a later date we would encourage our community to participate in ideas on a design for the water tower. 
 
Mayor Holston- a lot has transpired since then that we need to get up to speed on.  Painting the water tower and gathering 
volunteers was the brainchild of George Custer and a lot of volunteers donated to that, they used 40 gallons of paint and rented 
a lift and it was not an easy task.   
 
George Custer- regardless of what murals could go on there he is assuming everyone would want the water tower to say Oakridge.  
His intent is to keep it simple, something is better is nothing.  He is in the process of cutting the stencils out and getting new 
volunteers and another lift for a $1000 a day, so if you are looking at doing murals or anything else you are looking at several 
thousand dollars more.   
 
Councilor Kinyon- she is disappointed that you would go against the wish of the council and go ahead and do that. 
 
Councilor Hollett- she has an email agreement with George and the agreement was that it would be painted a solid color and he 
would leave the words out, about a week later George said he was pulling out and he said it should be a city project. If something 
changed behind the scenes the council should have been notified. 
 
Councilor McClelland- he does remember the motion and he did think it would be nice to involve the community, but given the 
information about the potential hazard of doing that we may want to rethink the idea from a safety standpoint.   His concern is 
that someone could be injured going up in the bucket, it is a little unnerving.   
 
Mayor Holston- council believed that public works was going to take the lead on this and she applauds the community for 
volunteering.  The purpose of this was to get that painted, putting up the word Oakridge isn’t going to prohibit us from doing 
something in the future.  
 
Bryan- at one point George did say he wasn’t going to participate and that point the only option to use public works. He personally 
welcomed it when George came back because of the complexity of the project and maybe he did not relate that to the council.  
Now we have two councilors that are very concerned about a process that was averted and if that’s the case he will take 
responsibility for that.  If you decide to vote this down because of a process foul you are going to have a white tank with nothing 
on it for years because we are never going to have the money to do this in the near future. 
 
Councilor McClelland- his opinion is that the two don’t have to be mutually exclusive, he doesn’t see why we can’t move forward 
with signage and then have the artwork designed around it to complement it.  
 
Councilor Kinyon- we haven’t’ even taken one step to investigate what it might cost for an artist to go up there and how is it any 
different than it would be for anyone else to go up there and use a stencil, we all agree it would be dangerous. 
 
George- regardless of whatever mural you put up you will need to have the Oakridge go up first.  He is prepared to go up and 
finish that part of the project and then if the city wants to form a committee he is willing to do that. 
 
Mayor Holston- we all agree that we made a motion, we did give direction, Bryan indicated that it was his shortcoming for saying 
the project is back on.  What she hears George saying is he has already prepared the stencil, do you want to go ahead and put 
Oakridge up there?  It will take time and we are going into the rainy season and that will give us time to find out what the interest 
is for the mural and the cost for the project. 
 



November 5, 2020 City Council Minutes Page 4 of 6 

Councilor Hollett- she agrees that the word Oakridge needs to be up there, but we might get an artist that has their own idea of 
where they want the word placed.   
 
Kinyon (aye), McClelland (nay), Mayor Holston (nay), Hollett (aye), Forcum (nay).  Motion failed 2-3 
 
Mayor Holston- the motion from May still stands, we need to look at the cost and if there is any interest for someone to paint it.  
 
Motion:  Councilor Kinyon moved to table this motion.  Councilor Hollett seconded the motion. 
 
Hollett (aye), Forcum (aye), McClelland (aye), Mayor Holston (nay), Kinyon (aye).  Motion carried 4-1 
 
10. Business from the City Administrator  
  
 10.1 CA Update 
 
Bryan-  Two of grants we applied for we have gotten a response: the fire department grant for staffing was denied but we did get 
the Small City Allotment grant to repave Berry Street. It was approved for $100,000 and we have two years execute this grant.   
 
The Harvest Festival trebuchet event will be this weekend, the original request for the rental of city property was for a different 
day.  With their permission he is going to transfer the approval to the new date. 
 
With the levy failure there will be significant changes in real-time coming to ensure that we have a balanced cash flow for the 
year. 
 
He will send out an email tomorrow about new councilor training. 
 
The city is moving forward with obtaining some battery powered speed advisory signs, the Chief is working with the company to 
get them installed. 
 
It is RTMP season again, he sent out an email as to what our allocation is this year, he will have the RTMP Committee meet to see 
if they want to continue with the established process. If they are in consensus they will start November 16th allowing applications 
to be submitted for two months and then go through the committee process and bring it to council in February. 
 
It is annual committee evaluation season, he will be sending out the evaluations to the committees. 
 
Lane County has got some palletized housing units that they are willing to sell or lease at no cost to cities for the warming center. 
This will make complying with COVID restrictions much simpler.   
 
There will be a Toys for Tots, the distribution process will be a little different this year due to COVID. 
 
The Transportation Systems Plan has been updated and the contractor who is responsible for printing is just about done. It will 
be brought back to council for approval. 
 
He wants to recognize Grace Kaplowitz, she is working for the city 50% of the time and working Oakridge Air for 50%. She has 
been doing a fabulous job, she’s got her feet on the ground, and her primary duty for the city is economic development.   
 
Councilor Kinyon- she would like an update on the emergency siren. 
 
Bryan- it is still being addressed by the safety committee. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- asked about the IMBA grant work, she thought there would be consequences if it wasn’t finished by October. 
 
Bryan- he confirmed with ODOT that as long as we started work, which we have, there won’t be any negative consequences.   
 
Councilor Kinyon- she would like the next steps regarding the levy and the changes that will be coming and she would like to 
know the process. 
 



November 5, 2020 City Council Minutes Page 5 of 6 

Bryan- the current year budget is a staff function, the harder part is a council issue, where we will have to develop a budget that 
doesn’t have the levy revenue.  If he makes any changes to staffing he will let council know as soon as he makes them. 
 
 10.2 Finance Director Update 
 
Eric- he is working with Summer on getting our information ready for the auditors. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- she wanted to follow up on an evaluation for our Municipal Judge. 
 
Mayor Holston- She will get with Councilor McClelland and Councilor Kinyon to start the process for the performance review of 
the Municipal Judge.   
 
 10.3 Police Update 
 
Chief Martin- read the October police report. 
 
 10.4 Fire/EMS Department Update 
 
Bryan- read the Fire Department update. 
 
Scott Hollett- they submitted a grant to Firehouse Subs for $43,000 and have ordered a new heart monitor which will help in 
transportation of COVID patients. The monitor was funded by CARES Act grant funds.    
 
 10.5 Public Works Update 
 
Bryan- read the Public Works update. 
 
11. Reports of Boards, Commissions and Committees 
 
 11.1 Administration Committee 
 
Bryan- they met last month, but they didn’t have a quorum.  They are focusing on city website cleanup and update.  Amy Kelley 
is working on making our forms PDF fillable. 
 
Mayor Holston- with Councilor Maxfield leaving she has asked Councilor Kinyon to take on the councilor position for the Admin 
Committee and she agreed.  With council approval she would like to begin the process to see what a charter review would look 
like and how the Admin Committee would begin moving out on that. 
 
Councilor Kinyon- wants to make sure all of the committee vacancies that we have and that will be coming up at the end of the 
year are posted. 
 
Bryan- he believes that every committee has been posted. 
 
 11.2 Community Services Committee- no report 
 
12. Items removed from the consent agenda-none 
  
13. Ordinances, Resolutions and Public Comment  
 
 13.1 Ordinance Amending Ordinance 932 to correct a Scrivener’s error- postponed due to time 
 13.2 Ordinance Amending Ordinance 933 to correct a Scrivener’s error- postponed due to time 
 13.3 Resolution 22-2020 City Administrator Performance Review  
 
Mayor Holston- the council went through and did the performance review and then met to discuss their findings and criteria.  
This is a public document and anyone is able to see it.  Mayor Holston read the issue. 
 
Motion:  Councilor McClelland moved we approve Resolution 22-2020, a Resolution accepting the City Administrators 
performance review.  Councilor Forcum seconded the motion.   



November 5, 2020 City Council Minutes Page 6 of 6 

 
Kinyon (aye), Forcum (aye), Hollett (aye), Mayor Holston (aye), McClelland (aye).  Motion carried 5-0 
 
14. Appointments-none 
 
15.  Public comment 
 
16. Adjourn 9:00 PM 
 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
  Kathy Holston, Mayor 
 
Signed:  _______________________________ 
               Jackie Sims, City Recorder 
 



   1 

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ISSUE:   Training is being offered on December 12, 2020 from 8:30am – 12:30pm for newly 
elected officials. The cost is $150/person for multiple attendees or $300/person for a single 
attendee.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  TBD. The remaining training budget line for council is $11,971. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 1) Approve the training for new elected councilor(s).     
                   2) Do not approve the training for newly elected councilors. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The staff recommends option 1.   
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  

(1) I move to approve the Portland State University training, Newly Elected Officials 
Leadership Academy for _____________________. 

 

 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title:  Available Training for Newly 
Elected Officials 

 
 
Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve training for 
councilor(s).  

 

Agenda Item No: 10.2 
 
Exhibits: (1) Background Information 
                  
 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
 





in town.   

You’ll endure seemingly endless meetings, eye-straining staff reports, and countless hours of public testimony. You’ll

face the challenges of working with strong-minded, passionate colleagues. They, too, are elected independently, striving

to make good decisions– just like you. 

This fall PSU's Center for Public Service is offering a one-day "Leadership Boot Camp" especially designed to help you

navigate these and other challenges and opportunities as a newly-elected local of�cial. (Others are also welcome to

attend - such as currently serving of�cials, top-level administrators, or citizen advisory board members.)

THE GOAL

AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE, HELP YOU TO SHINE IN YOUR EXCITING NEW ROLE AS A LOCAL GOVERNMENT OFFICIAL. TOPICS COVERED
IN THIS HALF-DAY, INTENSIVE VIRTUAL WORKSHOP INCLUDE

• Opportunities and Constraints: Understanding your role(s) as an elected board member;

• Ground Rules: Forging effective working relationships with elected colleagues; 

• Your New Best Friend: Constructing an appropriate, working relationship with your city manager/county

administrator;

• Lines that Matter: The key differences between policy and implementation;

• Effective Delegation: How to work with other boards, task forces, and advisory groups;

• Within the Fishbowl: Representing yourself and your board in public settings;

• Effective meetings: Everyone’s responsibility, not just the presiding of�cer’s;

• Keeping Faith with your Voters: Effectively promoting your own priorities;

• Building Consensus: How you can – and when you shouldn’t try.

PRICING

• $300/person for the �rst newly elected of�cial from a given jurisdiction.

• Half price discount ($150) for board members from small districts (annual budget less than $2 million).

• Jurisdiction Discount: $150/person ($75 for small districts) when additional of�cials from the same jurisdiction - e.g.

other newly-elected board members, veteran members, or city managers/county administrators - register for the

program.

Note: This professional certi�cate is offered as not-for-credit, and will not appear on your PSU transcript.

Cancellations: To receive a full refund, a written request to drop/withdraw from a course must be received by the

Program Coordinator by 5pm, 7 business days prior to the event.

FACILITATORS:

Scott Lazenby, Ph.D.: Scott has had a forty-year career in city management, most recently serving as city manager of

Lake Oswego and Sandy, Oregon. Scott is past-president of the Oregon City/County Management Association, and has

local government experience in Washington and Arizona. In addition to his PhD in Public Administration and Policy

from PSU’s Hat�eld School of Government in 2007, Scott has also written several novels featuring public service

protagonists.

Joe Hertzberg: Joe is currently a partner in Solid Ground Consulting and was formerly on the Political Science faculty at

Yale University. He has worked in Oregon for more than 25 years, specializing in strategy, leadership, and organization.

 He has helped many local governments set goals and decide how to work together effectively, including Portland,

Beaverton, Bend, Lake Oswego, Oregon City, Tigard, Wilsonville – and Los Angeles.



   1 

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE:  On February 20, 2020 City Council gave initial approval for development of a disc golf 
course. In addition, on May 21, 2020 they authorized $7,000 in TRT funds to be put toward the 
development.  
 
The Parks and Community Services Committee was tasked with developing an agreement 
between the city and Old Mill Disc Golf Club to delineate the shared responsibilities in 
maintaining the park.  
 
This agenda item is to provide the city council with the draft Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) for approval or revision.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  TBD. 
 
OPTIONS: (1)  Approve the MOU as written. 
       (2)  Direct a revision to the MOU.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends option (1)  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the City of Oakridge and the Oakridge Disc Golf Club.  
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title: Oakridge Disc Golf Course 
MOU 
 
 
Proposed Council Action:  Motion from the 
floor to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item No:  10.3 
 
Exhibits: (1) Memorandum of Understanding 
              
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 



Page 1 of 5  

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
CITY OF OAKRIDGE AND THE OAKRIDGE DISC GOLF CLUB 

 
A. PURPOSE 

 
This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is hereby entered into by and between the Oakridge Disc 
Golf Club (“ODGC”) whose address is ______________________and the City of Oakridge, a Oregon 
municipal corporation, whose address is 48318 E. 1st Street, Oakridge (“City”). City and ODGC shall 
be collectively referred to as the Parties. 

B. STATEMENT OF MUTUAL INTEREST AND BENEFIT 

Whereas, the City of Oakridge is the owner of the real property, which is located at the Oakridge 
Industrial Park, commonly known as Lots 3 and 4, as shown in Exhibit A; and 

 
Whereas, on August 20, 2020 the City of Oakridge City Council passed a rezoning of Lots 3 and 4, 
from Heavy Industrial (I-2) to Parks, Recreation and Open Spaces; and 

 
Whereas, the ODGC is, at present, an unincorporated committee formed by citizens of Oakridge, with 
the purpose to create, maintain and preserve Lots 3 and 4 as a parks, recreation and open spaces area, 
compatible with the planned and existing trail system.    

 
Whereas, the City does not have any staff or elected officials on the ODGC nor is the City providing 
funding to ODGC other than defined funds to enhance tourism; and 

 
Whereas, the ODGC will actively pursue formation a non-profit corporation with tax-exempt status; 
and  

 
Whereas, the City will relocate the parking area barrier to the agreed upon and ODGC will work 
together with the City to clear noxious weeds from the area with the goal of expanding the available 
parking to the Disc Golf Club; and 
 
Whereas, the City will continue to maintain the abatement areas on the lots; and 

 
Whereas, ODGC respect the legal limits of the lot boundaries, including the parcel leased to the 
Willamette Fish Hatchery; and 

 
Whereas, the City and ODGC will collaborate with stakeholders to ensure all parties interests and 
concerns are addressed; and 

 
Whereas, the ODGC will enhance park, educational, and recreational opportunities for residents of 
Oakridge as well as excellent revenue stream possibilities with partnerships with local recreational 
groups; City Recreation programs; rentals by community group for functions.  

 
In consideration of the above premises, the Parties agree as follows. 

  



Page 2 of 5  

 
 

C. IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED AND UNDERSTOOD THAT: 
 

This MOU is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document. Any endeavor involving reimbursement 
or contribution of funds between the parties to this MOU will be handled in accordance with applicable 
state or City laws, regulations, and procedures. Such endeavors will be outlined in separate agreements 
that shall be made in writing by representatives of the parties. It is further understood that all work 
done by ODGC will be done by volunteers, licensed contractors, or other individuals who are not City 
employees. 

D. DOCUMENT REVIEW 
 

ODGC will, upon reasonable advance written notice from the City, make available for inspection to the 
City, books and other documents relating to operation of the course. 

E. NOTICE 
 

Any notice or instrument required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed received upon 
personal delivery for five (5) days after deposit in any United States mail depository, first class postage 
prepaid and addressed to the party for whom intended. 

 
 

For the City: City Administrator 
City of Oakridge 

For ODGC: The Oakridge Disc Golf Club 
____________________ 

PO Box 1410  ____________________ 
Oakridge, OR 97463  

 
 

____________________ 



Page 3 of 5  

F. ASSIGNMENT 
 

The parties acknowledge and agree that the ODGC will assign its interest in this MOU to the ODGC 
nonprofit tax-exempt organization once it is formed as contemplated herein. No other assignment, 
sublet, or transfer of this MOU or any of the rights or interests in this MOU shall be made without the 
prior written consent of the parties. 

 
G. SEVERABILITY 

 
The partial or total invalidity of one or more parts of this MOU will not affect the intent or validity or 
remaining parts of this MOU. 

 
H. GOVERNING LAW 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon 
without regard to the conflict of laws or provisions of any jurisdiction. The exclusive jurisdiction and 
venue with respect to any and all disputes arising hereunder shall be in state and federal courts located 
in Lane County, Oregon. 

I. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
 

This MOU may be modified or amended, only upon written consent of both parties. The terms and 
conditions of this MOU shall remain in effect for a period of five years from the effective date of this 
MOU, or terminated as mutually agreed, or upon 30 days written notice by either party. The term of 
the MOU may be extended or amended by mutual consent of the Parties. 

 
J. INDEMNIFICATION 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, ODGC shall defend, through counsel approved by City (which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld), indemnify and hold harmless City, its officers, 
representatives, agents and employees against any and all suits, damages, costs, fees, claims, demands, 
causes of action, losses, liabilities and expenses, including without limitation attorneys’ fees, arising or 
resulting directly or indirectly from any act or omission of ODGC or its assistants, employees or 
agents, including all claims relating to the injury or death of any person or damage to any property



Page 4 of 5  

 

K. VOLUNTEERS 
 

Volunteers will be required to sign release of liability waivers prior to performing work on or related to 
the Oakridge Disc Golf Course which waives any and all liability of City and ODGC. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Bryan P. Cutchen 
City Administrator 
City of Oakridge 

Effective Date of this MOU 

 
 
 

  

 
 

Secretary 
Oakridge Disc Golf Club 

Date 

 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 

City Clerk 



Page 5 of 5  

Exhibit A – Vicinity Map and MOU Limits 
 
 
 

Vicinity Map 
 
 

 



   1 

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ISSUE:    
The City of Oakridge was awarded an Oregon Department of Transportation Small City Allotment Grant 
for Berry Street Improvements. The agreement requires the signature of the Mayor and City 
Administrator. It is a two-year reimbursable grant for $100,000.  The project is tentatively planned for 
2nd Quarter of CY 2021. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None.   
 
 
OPTIONS:  (1) Accept the SCA grant agreement.  
        (2) Do not accept SCA grant agreement. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends option 1.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we accept the $100,000 Oregon Department of Transportation 
Small City Allotment Grant for Berry Street Improvements.  

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title:  Small City Allotment (SCA) 
Grant Agreement 

 
 
 
Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to accept the agreement.  

 

Agenda Item No: 10.4 
 
Exhibits: (1) SCA Grant Agreement 
                  
                  
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
 



Misc. Contracts and Agreements 
No. 34547 

 
G001-T110420 

 

GRANT AGREEMENT 
OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
SMALL CITY ALLOTMENT PROGRAM (SCA) 

Project Name: Berry Street Improvements 

This Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the State of Oregon, 
acting by and through its Department of Transportation (“ODOT”), and City of Oakridge, acting by 
and through its Governing Body, (“Recipient”), both referred to individually or collectively as “Party” 
or “Parties.” 

1. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date this Agreement is fully executed 
and approved as required by applicable law (the “Effective Date”).  The availability of Grant Funds 
(as defined in Section 3) shall end two (2) years after the Effective Date (the “Availability 
Termination Date”). 

2. Agreement Documents.  This Agreement consists of this document and the following documents: 

a. Exhibit A: Project Description 
b. Exhibit B: Recipient Requirements 
c. Exhibit C: Subagreement Insurance Requirements 
d. Exhibit D: Documentation provided by Recipient prior to execution of the Agreement 
    (i.e. application, Part 1 of the Project Prospectus) 

 
Exhibits A, B and C are attached to this Agreement.  Exhibit D is incorporated by reference.  In the 
event of a conflict between two or more of the documents comprising this Agreement, the language 
in the document with the highest precedence shall control.  The precedence of each of the documents 
comprising this Agreement is as follows, listed from highest precedence to lowest precedence:  this 
Agreement without Exhibits; Exhibit A; Exhibit B; Exhibit C; Exhibit D.  

3. Project Cost; Grant Funds.   The total estimated Project cost is $107,000. In accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, ODOT shall provide Recipient grant funds in a total amount 
not to exceed $100,000 (the “Grant Funds”).  Recipient will be responsible for all Project costs not 
covered by the Grant Funds. 

4. Project. 

a. Use of Grant Funds.  The Grant Funds shall be used solely for the Project described in Exhibit 
A (the “Project”) and shall not be used for any other purpose.  No Grant Funds will be disbursed 
for any changes to the Project unless ODOT approves such changes by amendment pursuant to 
Section 4(c). 

b. Eligible Costs. Recipient may seek reimbursement for its actual costs to develop the Project, 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement (“Eligible Costs”).    



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

2 
 

i. Eligible Costs are actual costs of Recipient to the extent those costs are: 

A. reasonable, necessary and directly used for the Project;   

B. permitted by generally accepted accounting principles established by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, as reasonably interpreted by the State, to be capitalized to 
an asset that is part of the Project; and  

C. eligible or permitted uses of the Grant Funds under the Oregon Constitution, the statutes 
and laws of the state of Oregon, and this Agreement. 

ii. Eligible Costs do NOT include: 

A. operating and working capital or operating expenditures charged to the Project by 
Recipient;  

B. loans or grants to be made to third parties;  

C. any expenditures incurred before the Effective Date or after the Availability Termination 
Date;  

D. costs associated with the Project that substantially deviate from Exhibit A, Project 
Description, unless such changes are approved by ODOT by amendment of this 
Agreement; 

E. right of way costs; or 

F. costs to adjust, reconstruct or relocate utilities. 

c. Project Change Procedures. 

i. If Recipient anticipates a change in scope or Availability Termination Date, Recipient shall 
submit a written request to their ODOT Contact.  The request for change must be submitted 
before the change occurs. 

ii. Recipient shall not proceed with any changes to scope or Availability Termination Date 
before the execution of an amendment to this Agreement executed in response to ODOT’s 
approval of a Recipient’s request for change.  A request for change may be rejected at the 
sole discretion of ODOT. 

5. Reimbursement Process. 

a. ODOT shall reimburse Recipient for Eligible Costs up to the Grant Fund amount provided in 
Section 3.  ODOT shall reimburse Eligible Costs within forty-five (45) days of ODOT’s receipt 
and approval of a request for reimbursement from Recipient.  Recipient must pay its contractors, 
consultants and vendors before submitting a request for reimbursement to ODOT for 
reimbursement.   
 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

3 
 

b. On or after the Effective Date, and upon written request by Recipient, ODOT may advance to 
Recipient 50% of the Grant Funds to the Recipient. 
 

c. Each reimbursement request shall be submitted on letterhead to the Small City Allotment 
Program Manager at SmallCityAllotments@ODOT.state.or.us and the ODOT Contact.  The 
reimbursement request will include the Agreement number, the start and end date of the billing 
period, and itemize all expenses for which reimbursement is claimed.   
 

d. Recipient shall, no later than ninety (90) days after the completion of the Project or Availability 
Termination Date, whichever occurs earlier, submit a final reimbursement request for the 
remaining Eligible Costs of the Project which, when added to any amount previously advanced 
by State, shall not exceed the actual total cost of the Project or the Grant Funds, whichever is 
less.  Failure to submit the final request for reimbursement within ninety (90) days could result 
in non-payment.  For any Project element described in Exhibit A, or required by law that is not 
constructed under this Agreement, ODOT may withhold payment until the work is completed or 
may reduce the final reimbursement request amount, at ODOT’s discretion, in an amount 
commensurate with the work not performed.    
 

e. Upon ODOT’s receipt of the final reimbursement request, ODOT will conduct a final on-site 
review of the Project.  ODOT will withhold payment of the final reimbursement request until 
both the Small City Allotment Program Manager and ODOT Contact, or designee, have 
completed the final review and accepted the Project as complete. 

 
f. ODOT’s obligation to disburse Grant Funds to Recipient is subject to the satisfaction, with 

respect to each disbursement, of each of the following conditions precedent: 
 
i. ODOT has received funding, appropriations, limitations, allotments, or other expenditure 

authority sufficient to allow ODOT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative 
discretion, to make the disbursement. 

ii. Recipient is in compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 

iii. Recipient’s representations and warranties set forth in Section 6 are true and correct on the 
date of disbursement with the same effect as though made on the date of disbursement. 

g. Recovery of Grant Funds.   
 

i. Recovery of Misexpended Funds. Any Grant Funds disbursed to Recipient under this 
Agreement that are expended in violation of one or more of the provisions of this 
Agreement (“Misexpended Funds”) must be returned to ODOT.  Recipient shall return 
all Misexpended Funds to ODOT no later than fifteen (15) days after ODOT’s written 
demand for the same.  
 

ii. Recovery of Grant Funds upon Termination. If this Agreement is terminated under any 
of Sections 9(b)(i), 9(b)(ii), 9(b)(iii) or 9(b)(vi), Recipient shall return to ODOT all Grant 
Funds disbursed to Recipient within 15 days after ODOT’s written demand for the same. 

 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

4 
 

6. Representations and Warranties of Recipient.  Recipient represents and warrants to ODOT as 
follows: 

a. Organization and Authority.  Recipient is duly organized and validly existing under the laws 
of the State of Oregon and is eligible to receive the Grant Funds.  Recipient has full power, 
authority and legal right to make this Agreement and to incur and perform its obligations 
hereunder, and the making and performance by Recipient of this Agreement (1) have been duly 
authorized by all necessary action of Recipient and (2) do not and will not violate any provision 
of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order of any court, regulatory commission, board, or 
other administrative agency or any provision of Recipient’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws, 
if applicable, (3) do not and will not result in the breach of, or constitute a default or require any 
consent under any other agreement or instrument to which Recipient is a party or by which 
Recipient or any of its properties may be bound or affected.  No authorization, consent, license, 
approval of, filing or registration with or notification to any governmental body or regulatory or 
supervisory authority is required for the execution, delivery or performance by Recipient of this 
Agreement. 

b. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by Recipient and 
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Recipient, enforceable in accordance with its 
terms subject to the laws of bankruptcy, insolvency, or other similar laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. 

c. No Solicitation.  Recipient’s officers, employees, and agents shall neither solicit nor accept 
gratuities, favors, or any item of monetary value from contractors, potential contractors, or 
parties to subagreements. No member or delegate to the Congress of the United States or State 
of Oregon employee shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement or any benefit 
arising therefrom. 

d. No Debarment.  Neither Recipient nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, or 
voluntarily excluded from any federally-assisted transaction, or proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participating in this Agreement by any state or 
federal agency. Recipient agrees to notify ODOT immediately if it is debarred, suspended or 
otherwise excluded from any federally assisted transaction for any reason or if circumstances 
change that may affect this status, including without limitation upon any relevant indictments or 
convictions of crimes. 

e. Compliance with Oregon Taxes, Fees and Assessments. Recipient is, to the best of the 
undersigned(s) knowledge, and for the useful life of the Project will remain, current on all 
applicable state and local taxes, fees and assessments. 

7. Records Maintenance and Access; Audit. 

a. Records, Access to Records and Facilities.  Recipient shall make and retain proper and 
complete books of record and account and maintain all fiscal records related to this Agreement 
and the Project in accordance with all applicable generally accepted accounting principles, 
generally accepted governmental auditing standards and state minimum standards for audits of 
municipal corporations. Recipient shall ensure that each of its subrecipients and subcontractors 
complies with these requirements. ODOT, the Secretary of State of the State of Oregon (the 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

5 
 

“Secretary”) and their duly authorized representatives shall have access to the books, documents, 
papers and records of Recipient that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds, or 
the Project for the purpose of making audits and examinations.  In addition, ODOT, the Secretary 
and their duly authorized representatives may make and retain excerpts, copies, and 
transcriptions of the foregoing books, documents, papers, and records.  Recipient shall permit 
authorized representatives of ODOT and the Secretary to perform site reviews of the Project, 
and to inspect all vehicles, real property, facilities and equipment purchased by Recipient as part 
of the Project, and any transportation services rendered by Recipient. 

b. Retention of Records.  Recipient shall retain and keep accessible all books, documents, papers, 
and records that are directly related to this Agreement, the Grant Funds or the Project for a period 
of six (6) years after final payment.  If there are unresolved audit questions at the end of the 
period described in this section, Recipient shall retain the records until the questions are resolved.  

c. Expenditure Records.  Recipient shall document the expenditure of all Grant Funds disbursed 
by ODOT under this Agreement.  Recipient shall create and maintain all expenditure records in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and in sufficient detail to permit 
ODOT to verify how the Grant Funds were expended. 

This Section 7 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

8. Recipient Subagreements and Procurements 

a. Subagreements.  Recipient may enter into agreements with sub-recipients, contractors or 
subcontractors (collectively, “subagreements”) for performance of the Project. 

i. All subagreements must be in writing, executed by Recipient and must incorporate and pass 
through all of the applicable requirements of this Agreement to the other party or parties to 
the subagreement(s). Use of a subagreement does not relieve Recipient of its responsibilities 
under this Agreement.  

ii. Recipient shall require all of its contractors performing work under this Agreement to name 
ODOT as a third-party beneficiary of Recipient’s subagreement with the Contractor and to 
name ODOT as an additional or “dual” obligee on contractors’ payment and performance 
bonds. 

iii. Recipient shall provide ODOT with a copy of any signed subagreement, as well as any other 
purchasing or contracting documentation, upon ODOT’s request at any time.  Recipient must 
report to ODOT any material breach of a term or condition of a subagreement within ten (10) 
days of Recipient discovering the breach. 

b. Subagreement indemnity; insurance.  

i. Recipient’s subagreement(s) shall require the other party to such subagreements(s) 
that is not a unit of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, 
defend, save and hold harmless State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation 
Commission and its members, the Department of Transportation, their officers, agents 
and employees from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

6 
 

losses, or expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising from a tort, as now or hereafter 
defined in ORS 30.260, caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the 
negligent or willful acts or omissions of the other party to Recipient’s subagreement 
or any of such party’s officers, agents, employees or subcontractors (“Claims”). It is 
the specific intention of the Parties that ODOT shall, in all instances, except for Claims 
arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of ODOT, be indemnified 
by the other party to Recipient’s subagreement(s) from and against any and all Claims. 

ii. Any such indemnification shall also provide that neither Recipient’s subrecipient(s), 
contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s), nor any attorney engaged by Recipient’s 
subrecipient(s), contractor(s) nor subcontractor(s) shall defend any claim in the name of 
ODOT or any agency of the State of Oregon, nor purport to act as legal representative of 
the State of Oregon or any of its agencies, without the prior written consent of the Oregon 
Attorney General. The State may, at any time at its election, assume its own defense and 
settlement in the event that it determines that Recipient’s subrecipient is prohibited from 
defending the State, or that Recipient’s subrecipient is not adequately defending the 
State’s interests, or that an important governmental principle is at issue or that it is in the 
best interests of the State to do so. The State reserves all rights to pursue claims it may 
have against Recipient’s subrecipient if the State of Oregon elects to assume its own 
defense. 

iii. If the Project or Project work is on or along a state highway, Recipient shall require its 
contractor(s) to meet the minimum insurance requirements provided in Exhibit C. 
Recipient may specify insurance requirements of its contractor(s) above the minimum 
insurance requirements specified in Exhibit C. Recipient shall verify its contractor(s) 
meet the insurance requirements in Exhibit C. 

iv. Recipient shall determine insurance requirements, insurance types and amounts, as 
deemed appropriate based on the risk of the work outlined within the subagreement. 
Recipient shall specify insurance requirements and require its contractor(s) to meet the 
insurance requirements. Recipient shall obtain proof of the required insurance coverages, 
as applicable, from any contractor providing services related to the subagreement.  

 
v. Recipient shall require its contractor(s) to require and verify that all subcontractors carry 

insurance coverage that the contractor(s) deems appropriate based on the risks of the 
subcontracted work. 

 
c. Procurements.  Recipient shall make purchases of any equipment, materials, or services for the 

Project under procedures that comply with Oregon law, including all applicable provisions of 
the Oregon Public Contracting Code, Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 279 A, B, and C, and rules, 
ensuring that: 

i. All applicable clauses required by federal statute, executive orders and their implementing 
regulations are included in each competitive procurement; and 

ii. All procurement transactions are conducted in a manner providing full and open competition. 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

7 
 

d. Self-Performing Work. Recipient must receive prior approval from ODOT for any self-
performing work. 

e. Conflicts of Interest. Recipient’s public officials shall comply with Oregon’s government ethics 
laws, ORS 244.010 et seq., as those laws may be subsequently amended.  

9. Termination 

a. Mutual Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the 
Parties. 

b. Termination by ODOT.  ODOT may terminate this Agreement effective upon delivery of 
written notice of termination to Recipient, or at such later date as may be established by ODOT 
in such written notice, under any of the following circumstances: 

i. If Recipient fails to perform the Project within the time specified in this Agreement, or any 
extension of such performance period; 

ii. If Recipient takes any action pertaining to this Agreement without the approval of ODOT 
and which under the provisions of this Agreement would have required ODOT’s approval; 

iii. If Recipient fails to perform any of its other obligations under this Agreement, and that failure 
continues for a period of 10 calendar days after the date ODOT delivers Recipient written 
notice specifying such failure. ODOT may agree in writing to an extension of time if it 
determines Recipient instituted and has diligently pursued corrective action; 

iv. If ODOT fails to receive funding, appropriations, limitations or other expenditure authority 
sufficient to allow ODOT, in the exercise of its reasonable administrative discretion, to 
continue to make payments for performance of this Agreement;  

v. If Federal or state laws, rules, regulations or guidelines are modified or interpreted in such a 
way that the Project is no longer allowable or no longer eligible for funding under this 
Agreement; or 

vi. If the Project would not produce results commensurate with the further expenditure of funds. 

c. Termination by Either Party.  Either Party may terminate this Grant Agreement upon at least 
ten (10) days’ notice to the other Party and failure of the other Party to cure within the period 
provided in the notice, if the other Party fails to comply with any of the terms of this Grant 
Agreement. 

d. Rights upon Termination; Remedies. Any termination of this Grant Agreement shall not 
prejudice any rights or obligations accrued before termination. The remedies set forth in this 
Grant Agreement are cumulative and are in addition to any other rights or remedies available at 
law or in equity.  

10. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

a. Contribution. 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

8 
 

 
i. If any third party makes any claim or brings any action, suit or proceeding alleging a tort as 

now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260 (“Third Party Claim”) against ODOT or Recipient 
with respect to which the other Party may have liability, the notified Party must promptly 
notify the other Party in writing of the Third Party Claim and deliver to the other Party a 
copy of the claim, process, and all legal pleadings with respect to the Third Party Claim. 
Each Party is entitled to participate in the defense of a Third Party Claim, and to defend a 
Third Party Claim with counsel of its own choosing. Receipt by a Party of the notice and 
copies required in this paragraph and meaningful opportunity for the Party to participate in 
the investigation, defense and settlement of the Third Party Claim with counsel of its own 
choosing are conditions precedent to that Party’s liability with respect to the Third Party 
Claim. 

ii. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which ODOT is jointly liable with Recipient (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), ODOT shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by Recipient in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of ODOT on the one hand and of the Recipient on the 
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines 
or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative 
fault of ODOT on the one hand and of Recipient on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. ODOT’s contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including 
the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if ODOT had sole liability in the 
proceeding. 

iii. With respect to a Third Party Claim for which Recipient is jointly liable with ODOT (or 
would be if joined in the Third Party Claim), Recipient shall contribute to the amount of 
expenses (including attorneys’ fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement 
actually and reasonably incurred and paid or payable by ODOT in such proportion as is 
appropriate to reflect the relative fault of Recipient on the one hand and of ODOT on the 
other hand in connection with the events which resulted in such expenses, judgments, fines 
or settlement amounts, as well as any other relevant equitable considerations. The relative 
fault of Recipient on the one hand and of ODOT on the other hand shall be determined by 
reference to, among other things, the Parties’ relative intent, knowledge, access to 
information and opportunity to correct or prevent the circumstances resulting in such 
expenses, judgments, fines or settlement amounts. Recipient’s contribution amount in any 
instance is capped to the same extent it would have been capped under Oregon law, including 
the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 to 30.300, if it had sole liability in the proceeding. 

b. Dispute Resolution.  The Parties shall attempt in good faith to resolve any dispute arising out 
of this Agreement. In addition, the Parties may agree to utilize a jointly selected mediator or 
arbitrator (for non-binding arbitration) to resolve the dispute short of litigation. 

c. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or extended only by a written instrument 
signed by both Parties and approved as required by applicable law. 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

9 
 

d. Duplicate Payment.  Recipient is not entitled to compensation or any other form of duplicate, 
overlapping or multiple payments for the same work performed under this Agreement from any 
agency of the State of Oregon or the United States of America or any other party, organization 
or individual. 

e. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.   ODOT and Recipient are the only Parties to this Agreement 
and are the only Parties entitled to enforce its terms.  Nothing in this Agreement gives, is intended 
to give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether directly or 
indirectly, to a third person unless such a third person is individually identified by name herein 
and expressly described as an intended beneficiary of the terms of this Agreement. 

f. Notices.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any communications 
between the Parties hereto or notices to be given hereunder shall be given in writing by personal 
delivery, email or mailing the same, postage prepaid, to Recipient Contact or ODOT Contact at 
the address or number set forth on the signature page of this Agreement, or to such other 
addresses or numbers as either Party may hereafter indicate pursuant to this Section 10(g). Any 
communication or notice personally delivered shall be deemed to be given when actually 
delivered. Any communication or notice delivered by facsimile shall be deemed to be given 
when receipt of the transmission is generated by the transmitting machine, and to be effective 
against ODOT, such facsimile transmission must be confirmed by telephone notice to ODOT 
Contact. Any communication by email shall be deemed to be given when the recipient of the 
email acknowledges receipt of the email. Any communication or notice mailed shall be deemed 
to be given when received.  

g. Governing Law, Consent to Jurisdiction.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflicts of 
law.  Any claim, action, suit or proceeding (collectively, “Claim”) between ODOT (or any other 
agency or department of the State of Oregon) and Recipient that arises from or relates to this 
Agreement shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court of 
Marion County in the State of Oregon.  In no event shall this section be construed as a waiver 
by the State of Oregon of any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, 
governmental immunity, immunity based on the eleventh amendment to the Constitution of the 
United States or otherwise, from any Claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  Each party 
hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of such court, waives any objection to venue, and 
waives any claim that such forum is an inconvenient forum. 

h. Compliance with Law.  Recipient shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, 
regulations, executive orders and ordinances applicable to the Agreement or to the 
implementation of the Project, including without limitation as described in Exhibit B.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, Recipient expressly agrees to comply with (i) Title VI 
of Civil Rights Act of 1964; (ii) Title V and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; (iii) 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and ORS 659A.142; (iv) all regulations and 
administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and (v) all other applicable 
requirements of federal and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations.  
Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of ORS 366.514, Use of Highway Fund for 
footpaths and bicycle trails. 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

10 
 

i. Insurance; Workers’ Compensation.   All employers, including Recipient, that employ subject 
workers who provide services in the State of Oregon shall comply with ORS 656.017 and 
provide the required Workers’ Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under 
ORS 656.126.  Employer’s liability insurance with coverage limits of not less than $500,000 
must be included. Recipient shall ensure that each of its subrecipient(s), contractor(s), and 
subcontractor(s) complies with these requirements.  

j. Independent Contractor.  Recipient shall perform the Project as an independent contractor and 
not as an agent or employee of ODOT.  Recipient has no right or authority to incur or create any 
obligation for or legally bind ODOT in any way.  ODOT cannot and will not control the means 
or manner by which Recipient performs the Project, except as specifically set forth in this 
Agreement.  Recipient is responsible for determining the appropriate means and manner of 
performing the Project.  Recipient acknowledges and agrees that Recipient is not an “officer”, 
“employee”, or “agent” of ODOT, as those terms are used in ORS 30.265, and shall not make 
representations to third parties to the contrary. 

k. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the validity of the remaining terms and 
provisions shall not be affected, and the rights and obligations of the Parties shall be construed 
and enforced as if this Agreement did not contain the particular term or provision held to be 
invalid. 

l. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which is 
an original and all of which together are deemed one agreement binding on all Parties, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 

m. Integration and Waiver.  This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire 
agreement between the parties on the subject matter hereof.  There are no understandings, 
agreements, or representations, oral or written, not specified herein regarding this Agreement.  
The delay or failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute 
a waiver by that party of that or any other provision.  Recipient, by the signature below of its 
authorized representative, acknowledges that it has read this Agreement, understands it, and 
agrees to be bound by its terms and conditions. 

THE PARTIES, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledge that their signing representatives have 
read this Agreement, understand it, and agree to be bound by its terms and conditions. 
 
 

Signature Page to Follow  



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

11 
 

City of Oakridge, by and through its elected 
officials 

By____________________________ 
(Legally designated representative) 

Name__________________________ 
(printed)  

Date___________________________ 

By____________________________ 

Name__________________________ 
(printed)  

Date___________________________ 

LEGAL REVIEW APPROVAL  
(If required in Recipient’s process) 

By____________________________ 
Recipient’s Legal Counsel  

Date___________________________ 

Recipient Contact: 
Bryan Cutchen 
PO Box 1410 
Oakridge, OR 97363 
541-782-2258 
cityadministrator@ci.oakridge.or.us 
 
 

STATE OF OREGON, by and through its 
Department of Transportation 
By____________________________ 
Statewide Investments Management Section 
Manager 
 
Name__________________________ 
(printed)  

Date___________________________ 

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED 

By____________________________ 
Small City Allotment Program Manager 
 
Name__________________________ 
(printed)  

Date _________________________ 

By___Michael Kimlinger via email___________ 
State Traffic-Roadway Engineer 
 
Date_______November 17, 2020____________ 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
By_______________________________ 
Assistant Attorney General (If over $150,000) 
 
Date_____________________________ 

ODOT SCA Contact: 
Deanna Edgar 
555 13th Street NE 
Salem, OR 97310 
503-986-3441 
deanna.edgar@odot.state.or.us 
 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

12 
 

EXHIBIT A 

Project Description 
Agreement No. 34547 

Project Name: Berry Street Improvements 
 

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION  

Berry Street from Rainbow Road to Rock Road 

Project will include base repairs as needed, asphalt overlay, walkway on the south side and curb ramps on 
the SW corner of the Berry Street/Rock Road intersection and the SE and SW corners of the Private Road 
located mid-way between Rock Road and Rainbow Road. 

Recipient acknowledges that such Project improvements funded under this Agreement may trigger other 
Recipient responsibilities under the Americans with Disabilities Act. Recipient agrees that it is solely 
responsible for ensuring Americans with Disabilities Act compliance pursuant to Exhibit B, Recipient 
Requirements, Section 5. 

 

  



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

13 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Recipient Requirements 

 
1. Recipient shall comply with all applicable provisions of ORS 279C.800 to 279C.870 pertaining 
to prevailing wage rates and including, without limitation, that workers on the Project shall be paid not 
less than rates in accordance with ORS 279C.838 and 279C.840 pertaining to wage rates and ORS 
279C.836 pertaining to having a public works bond filed with the Construction Contractors’ Board. 

 
2. Recipient shall notify ODOT’s Contact in writing when any contact information changes during 
the Agreement. 

 
3. Recipient shall, at its own expense, maintain and operate the Project upon completion and 
throughout the useful life of the Project at a minimum level that is consistent with normal depreciation 
or service demand or both. The Parties agree that the useful life of the Project is defined as seven (7) 
years from its completion date (the “Project Useful Life”).  Unless otherwise negotiated, and after the 
Project Useful Life, ODOT will maintain that portion of the project that is within its jurisdiction. 

 
4. Recipient shall maintain insurance policies with responsible insurers or self-insurance programs, 
insuring against liability and risk of direct physical loss, damage or destruction of the Project, at least to 
the extent that similar insurance is customarily carried by governmental units constructing, operating 
and maintaining similar facilities.  If the Project or any portion is destroyed, insurance proceeds will be 
paid to ODOT, unless Recipient has informed ODOT in writing that the insurance proceeds will be used 
to rebuild the Project. 

 
5. Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance 

a. State Highway: For portions of the Project located on or along the State Highway System or 
a State-owned facility (“state highway”):  

i. Recipient shall utilize ODOT standards to assess and ensure Project compliance with 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and the Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990 as amended (together, “ADA”), including ensuring that all sidewalks, curb 
ramps, pedestrian-activated signals meet current ODOT Highway Design Manual 
standards; 

ii. Recipient shall follow ODOT’s processes for design, construction, or alteration of 
sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated signals, including using the ODOT 
Highway Design Manual, ODOT Design Exception process, ODOT Standard Drawings, 
ODOT Construction Specifications, providing a temporary pedestrian accessible route 
plan and current ODOT Curb Ramp Inspection form; 

iii. At Project completion, Recipient shall send a completed ODOT Curb Ramp Inspection 
Form 734-5020 to the address on the form and to State’s Project Manager for each curb 
ramp constructed or altered as part of the Project. The completed form is the 
documentation required to show that each curb ramp meets ODOT standards and is ADA 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

14 
 

compliant. ODOT’s fillable Curb Ramp Inspection Form and instructions are available 
at the following address: 

https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Engineering/Pages/Accessibility.aspx 

iv. Recipient shall promptly notify ODOT of Project completion and allow ODOT to inspect 
Project sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated signals located on or along a 
state highway prior to acceptance of Project by Recipient and prior to release of any 
Recipient contractor. 

v. Recipient shall ensure that temporary pedestrian routes are provided through or around 
any Project work zone.  Any such temporary pedestrian route shall include directional 
and informational signs, comply with ODOT standards, and include accessibility features 
equal to or better than the features present in the existing pedestrian facility.  Recipient 
shall also ensure that advance notice of any temporary pedestrian route is provided in 
accessible format to the public, people with disabilities, disability organizations, and 
ODOT at least 10 days prior to the start of construction.   

b. Local Roads: For portions of the Project located on Recipient roads or facilities that are not 
on or along a state highway: 

i. Recipient shall ensure that the Project, including all sidewalks, curb ramps, and 
pedestrian-activated signals, is designed, constructed and maintained in compliance with 
the ADA.  

ii. Recipient may follow its own processes or may use ODOT’s processes for design, 
construction, or alteration of Project sidewalks, curb ramps, and pedestrian-activated 
signals, including using the ODOT Highway Design Manual, ODOT Design Exception 
process, ODOT Standard Drawings, ODOT Construction Specifications, providing a 
temporary pedestrian accessible route plan  and current Curb Ramp Inspection form, 
available at:  

https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Engineering/Pages/Accessibility.aspx;  

Additional ODOT resources are available at the above-identified link. ODOT has made 
its forms, processes, and resources available for Recipient’s use and convenience.   

iii. Recipient assumes sole responsibility for ensuring that the Project complies with the 
ADA, including when Recipient uses ODOT forms and processes.  Recipient 
acknowledges and agrees that ODOT is under no obligation to review or approve Project 
plans or inspect the completed Project to confirm ADA compliance.      

iv. Recipient shall ensure that temporary pedestrian routes are provided through or around 
any Project work zone.  Any such temporary pedestrian route shall include directional 
and informational signs and include accessibility features equal to or better than the 
features present in the existing pedestrian route.  Recipient shall also ensure that advance 
notice of any temporary pedestrian route is provided in accessible format to the public, 
people with disabilities, and disability organizations prior to the start of construction. 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

15 
 

c. Recipient shall ensure that any portions of the Project under Recipient’s maintenance jurisdiction 
are maintained in compliance with the ADA throughout the useful life of the Project. This 
includes, but is not limited to, Recipient ensuring that:  

i. Pedestrian access is maintained as required by the ADA, 

ii. Any complaints received by Recipient identifying sidewalk, curb ramp, or pedestrian-
activated signal safety or access issues are promptly evaluated and addressed,  

iii. Recipient, or abutting property owner, pursuant to local code provisions, performs any repair 
or removal of obstructions needed to maintain the Project in compliance with the ADA 
requirements that were in effect at the time the Project was constructed or altered,  

iv. Any future alteration work on Project or Project features during the useful life of the Project 
complies with the ADA requirements in effect at the time the future alteration work is 
performed, and 

v. Applicable permitting and regulatory actions are consistent with ADA requirements. 

d. Maintenance obligations in this Section 5 shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

6. Work Performed within ODOT’s Right of Way 

a. Prior to the commencement of work, Recipient shall obtain, or require its contractor to obtain, 
permission from the appropriate ODOT District Office to work on or along the state highway. 
This Agreement does not provide permission to work on or along the state highway. 

b. If the Project includes traffic control devices (see ODOT’s Traffic Manual, Chapter 5, for a 
description of traffic control devices) on or along a state highway, Recipient shall, pursuant to 
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 734-020-0430, obtain the approval of the State Traffic 
Engineer prior to design or construction of any traffic control device being installed. 

c. Recipient shall enter into a separate traffic signal agreement with ODOT to cover obligations for 
any traffic signal being installed on a state highway. 

d. Recipient shall ensure that its electrical inspectors possess a current State Certified Traffic Signal 
Inspector certificate before the inspectors inspect electrical installations on state highways. The 
ODOT’s District Office shall verify compliance with this requirement before construction. The 
permit fee should also cover the State electrician's supplemental inspection.  

7. General Standards 

The Project shall be completed within industry standards and best practices to ensure that the 
functionality and serviceability of the Program’s investment meets the intent of the application 
and the Program. 

8. Land Use Decisions 
 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

16 
 

a. Recipient shall obtain all permits, “land use decisions” as that term is defined by ORS 197.015(1) 
(2020), and any other approvals necessary for Recipient to complete the Project by the Project 
completion deadline identified in Exhibit A (each a “Land Use Decision” and collectively, “Land 
Use Decisions”).  
 

b. If at any time before the Availability Termination Date identified in Section 1 of this Agreement 
ODOT concludes, in its sole discretion, that Recipient is unlikely to obtain one or more Land 
Use Decisions before the Availability Termination Date, ODOT may (i) suspend the further 
disbursement of Grant Funds upon written notice to Recipient (a “Disbursement Suspension”) 
and (ii) exercise any of its other rights and remedies under this Agreement, including, without 
limitation, terminating the Agreement and recovering all Grant Funds previously disbursed to 
Recipient.  
 

c. If after a Disbursement Suspension ODOT concludes, in its sole discretion and based upon 
additional information or events, that Recipient is likely to timely obtain the Land Use Decision 
or Decisions that triggered the Disbursement Suspension, ODOT will recommence disbursing 
Grant Funds as otherwise provided in this Agreement.  
 

d. This Section 8 is in addition to, and not in lieu of, ODOT’s rights and remedies under Section 
5.g (“Recovery of Grant Funds”) of this Agreement.    

 
9. Website 
 

Recipient shall provide ODOT a link to any website created about the Project identified in 
Exhibit A before any costs being considered eligible for reimbursement. Recipient shall notify 
the ODOT Contact in writing when the link changes during the term of this Grant Agreement. 

  



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

17 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 

Subagreement Insurance Requirements 
1. GENERAL.  

 
a. If the Project is on or along a state highway, Recipient shall require in its first tier subagreements 

with entities that are not units of local government as defined in ORS 190.003, if any, to: i) 
obtain insurance specified under TYPES AND AMOUNTS and meeting the requirements under 
ADDITIONAL INSURED, “TAIL” COVERAGE, NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR 
CHANGE, and CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE before performance under the subagreement 
commences, and ii) maintain the insurance in full force throughout the duration of the 
subagreement.  The insurance must be provided by insurance companies or entities that are 
authorized to transact the business of insurance and issue coverage in the State of Oregon and 
that are acceptable to ODOT.  Recipient shall not authorize work to begin under subagreements 
until the insurance is in full force. Thereafter, Recipient shall monitor continued compliance with 
the insurance requirements on an annual or more frequent basis. Recipient shall incorporate 
appropriate provisions in the subagreement permitting it to enforce compliance with the 
insurance requirements and shall take all reasonable steps to enforce such compliance.  In no 
event shall Recipient permit work under a subagreement when Recipient is aware that the 
contractor is not in compliance with the insurance requirements. As used in this section, “first 
tier” means a subagreement in which the Recipient is a Party. 
 

b. The insurance specified below is a minimum requirement that the contractor within the 
subagreement shall meet. Recipient may determine insurance types and amounts in excess to the 
minimum requirement as deemed appropriate based on the risks of the work outlined within the 
subagreement. 
 

c. Recipient shall require the contractor(s) to require that all of its subcontractors carry insurance 
coverage that the contractor deems appropriate based on the risks of the subcontracted work. 
Contractor shall obtain proof of the required insurance coverages, as applicable, from any 
subcontractor providing Services related to the Contract. 
 

2. TYPES AND AMOUNTS. 
 
a. WORKERS COMPENSATION.  

All employers, including Contractor, that employ subject workers, as defined in ORS 656.027, 
shall comply with ORS 656.017 and shall provide Workers' Compensation Insurance 
coverage for those workers, unless they meet the requirement for an exemption under ORS 
656.126(2).  The coverage shall include Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits not less than 
$500,000 each accident.  Contractor shall require compliance with these requirements in 
each of its subcontractor contracts. 
 

b. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY.  
Commercial General Liability Insurance shall be issued on an occurrence basis covering bodily 
injury and property damage and shall include personal and advertising injury liability, products 
and completed operations, and contractual liability coverage. When work to be performed 
includes operations or activity within 50 feet of any railroad property, bridge, trestle, track, 



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

18 
 

roadbed, tunnel, underpass or crossing, the Contractor shall provide the Contractual Liability – 
Railroads CG 24 17 endorsement, or equivalent, on the Commercial General Liability policy. 
Amounts below are a minimum requirement as determined by ODOT: 
 
Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis in an amount of not less than $1,000,000 per 
occurrence. Annual aggregate limit shall not be less than $2,000,000. 

c. AUTOMOBILE Liability Insurance: Automobile Liability.  
Automobile Liability Insurance covering Contractor’s business-related automobile use covering all 
owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles for bodily injury and property. This coverage may be written 
in combination with the Commercial General Liability Insurance (with separate limits for 
Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability). Amount below is a minimum 
requirement as determined by ODOT: 
 
Coverage shall be written with a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000.  
 

d. ADDITIONAL INSURED.   
The Commercial General Liability Insurance and Automobile Liability Insurance must include 
the “State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation Commission and the Department of 
Transportation, and their respective officers, members, agents and employees” as an 
endorsed Additional Insured but only with respect to the contractor’s activities to be performed 
under the Subcontract. Coverage shall be primary and non-contributory with any other insurance 
and self-insurance. 
 
Additional Insured Endorsements on the Commercial General Liability shall be written on ISO 
Form CG 20 10 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of ongoing operations 
and ISO Form CG 20 37 07 04, or equivalent, with respect to liability arising out of completed 
operations. Additional Insured Endorsements shall be submitted with the Certificate(s) of 
Insurance and must be acceptable to the Recipient. 
 

e. “TAIL” COVERAGE.   
If any of the required insurance policies is on a “claims made” basis, such as professional liability 
insurance or pollution liability insurance,  the contractor shall maintain either “tail” coverage or 
continuous “claims made” liability coverage, provided the effective date of the continuous 
“claims made” coverage is on or before the effective date of the Subcontract, for a minimum of 
twenty-four (24) months following the later of : (i) the contractor’s completion and Recipient’s 
acceptance of all Services required under the Subcontract or, (ii) the expiration of all warranty 
periods provided under the Subcontract. Notwithstanding the foregoing twenty-four (24) month 
requirement, if the contractor elects to maintain “tail” coverage and if the maximum time period 
“tail” coverage reasonably available in the marketplace is less than the twenty-four (24) month 
period described above, then the contractor may request and ODOT may grant approval of  the 
maximum “tail “ coverage period reasonably available in the marketplace.  If ODOT approval 
is granted, the contractor shall maintain “tail” coverage for the maximum time period that “tail” 
coverage is reasonably available in the marketplace.  
 

  



ODOT/Recipient 
Agreement No. 34547  

19 
 

f. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OR CHANGE.  
The contractor or its insurer must provide thirty (30) days’ written notice to Recipient before 
cancellation of, material change to, potential exhaustion of aggregate limits of, or non-renewal 
of the required insurance coverage(s). 
 

g. CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE.  
Recipient shall obtain from the contractor a certificate(s) of insurance for all required insurance 
before the contractor performs under the Subcontract. The certificate(s) or an attached 
endorsement must specify: i) “State of Oregon, the Oregon Transportation Commission and 
the Department of Transportation, and their respective officers, members, agents and 
employees” as an endorsed Additional Insured in regards to the Commercial General Liability 
and Automobile Liability policies and ii) that all liability insurance coverages shall be primary 
and non-contributory with any other insurance and self-insurance, with exception of Workers’ 
Compensation.. 

The Recipient shall immediately notify ODOT of any change in insurance coverage. 



   1 

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE:   The existing City of Oakridge Strategic Plan expired in 2018. Significant progress was made 
towards achieving the vision and goals developed in that plan. To continue this progress and update the 
visionary document, a new strategic plan is required.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. The plan was developed and facilitated by a contractor, South Willamette 
Solutions, through a Ford Family Foundation grant of $5,000.  
 
 
OPTIONS:  (1) Approve Resolution 23-2020.  
        (2) Do not approve Resolution 23-2020. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends option 1.  
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve Resolution 23-2020, A resolution adopting the 
City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020.   

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title:  City of Oakridge Strategic 
Plan 
 
 
 
Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve Resolution 23-2020.  
 

Agenda Item No: 13.1 
 
Exhibits: (1) Resolution 24-2020 
                 (2) Strategic Plan 2020 
                  
 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 

RES.  23-2020 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE STRATEGIC PLAN 
 

WHEREAS, in 2013 the City of Oakridge adopted its strategic plan which expired in 2018. This plan 
included a community description, mission statement, guiding principles, vision statement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2013 Strategic Plan was to provide an articulated vision and blueprint for focused City 
actions given the scarcity of resources and competing policy initiatives in a challenging fiscal 
environment; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City made great progress towards achieving its vision for 2018; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City recognized the value of adopting a new Strategic Plan to continue this work and 
engaged South Willamette Solutions in June 2020 to commence the strategic planning process; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council convened strategic planning work sessions, the city administrator formed a 
strategic planning ad hoc committee and feedback from the community was solicited by a survey which 
received significant responses to help develop this plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, after a careful review and consideration of the community and stakeholders feedback, the 
city council has developed a strategic plan for the City of Oakridge that includes a community 
description, mission statement, guiding principles, vision statement, strategic goals and a scorecard to 
track attainment; and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE AS FOLLOWS:   
 
Section 1. Adoption of the City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020.  
 
The City Council hereby adopts the City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020, attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein.  
 
Section 2. Effective Date.  
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon final adoption by the City Council.         .  
 
PRESENTED AND PASSED this 3rd day of December, 2020.  
 
_________________________________________ 
Jackie Sims, Assistant City Recorder  
 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor this _________________(date). 
 
_________________________________________ 
Kathy Holston, Mayor  





2 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Table of Contents 
 
About Oakridge ........................................................................................................................ 3 

What is a Strategic Plan? ........................................................................................................ 7 

2020 Planning Process ............................................................................................................ 9 

Community Survey ................................................................................................................ 11 

Council Goals ........................................................................................................................ 14 

Implementation - Scorecard ................................................................................................... 17 

Safe Community .................................................................................................................... 18 

Responsive Government ....................................................................................................... 19 

Strong Economy .................................................................................................................... 20 

Community Livability .............................................................................................................. 21 

Additional Resources ............................................................................................................. 22 

 



3 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

About Oakridge  
The City of Oakridge, Oregon is located in 

the western slopes of the Cascade 

mountain range, surrounded by the 

Willamette National Forest.  The community 

sits at 1,200 feet elevation, above the fog of 

the Willamette Valley, and below the winter 

mountain snow line in the Upper Willamette 

Watershed. Oakridge is located on lands 

that are part of the ancestral homeland of 

the Kalapuya and Molalla tribes. Today 

3,334 people live in the City of Oakridge and approximately 4,000 people total live in the 

greater Oakridge area. Over 5000 travelers pass through the city each day on Highway 58, 

one of Oregon’s major east-west state travel routes. In the 1990’s Oakridge branded itself as 

the Center of Oregon Outdoor Recreation and in the 2000’s as the Mountain Biking Capital of 

the Northwest.  

Today, Oakridge is known as a destination recreation area for downhill mountain biking and 

many other outdoor forest recreation activities. 500 miles of single track trail are accessible 

from town. Within 30 miles are hundreds of pristine high mountain lakes, including Waldo 

Lake, and easy access to three wilderness areas. East of town is Salt Creek Falls, Oregon’s 

second highest drop waterfall, and Willamette Pass ski area. Oakridge offers easy access to 

many additional recreation opportunities such as hiking, camping, boating, motor sports, 

hunting and fishing. 

History 

Oakridge was first known under a different name in 1888 when a post office was established 

and the town was named Hazeldell. In 1912, the Southern Pacific Railroad opened a new 

railway station and the City officially changed its name to Oakridge. The town grew as a 

railroad town along the heavily used Southern Pacific Cascade line. Oakridge experienced a 

second growth period after the Pope and Talbot Timber Company opened a sawmill in the 

community in 1948.  The combined economic base of the railroad and sawmills accounted for 



4 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

the population growth of the 1960s and 1970s, when the community of Willamette City was 

consolidated into Oakridge. By the 1980’s, mills closed and the decline of the timber industry 

led to a significant economic transition as many family wage jobs ended and the population 

decreased.  

Demographics 

2020 Oregon Prospector data identified the population as 84.98% White, 1.5% Black, 1.5% 

American Indian, 0.97% Asian, 0.03% from other races, and 4.27% from two or more races. 

Hispanic or Latino of any race were 6.75% of the population. The median age in the city was 

about 50 years. Nineteen and a half percent of residents were under the age of 20; about 

8.69% were between the ages of 20 and 29; about 9.16% were from 30 to 39; 11.78% were 

from 40 to 49; 13.2% were from 50-59, 7.98% were from 60-64, and about 29.54% were 65 

years of age or older. The gender makeup of the city was 50.37% male and 49.63% female. 

According to the Environmental Protection Agency’s EJSCREEN tool (Environmental 

Protection Agency, 2019), Oakridge-Westfir ranks in the 84th percentile compared to the 

state average of low-income populations. The demographic indicators show that 66% of the 

population is low income, and 16% of the residents are over 64 years old. 70% of the 

population in the 97463 zip code reside in owner-occupied housing units. 

Workforce 

Approximately 76.3% of Oakridge residents have attained a high school diploma or higher 

education: 23.68% are without a high school diploma, 31.42% with a high school diploma or 

equivalent; 30.69% have some college or an associate's degree; 8.97% have a bachelor's 

degree; and 5.24% have a graduate or professional degree.  

There are 617 people employed in Oakridge, and the labor force is 1,177. Census data from 

2010 showed that 62% of the people who have jobs in Oakridge live in the area while 38% of 

the people who work here commute in from the valley (primarily to work for the largest 

employers: the USDA Forest Service and Oakridge School District).  



5 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Governance 

The City has a council-manager form of 

government adopted in 1972. Oakridge is a full 

service city providing street, water, wastewater, 

and park utilities; police, fire, and ambulance 

services; library, economic development, 

planning/zoning, and administrative services. 

The City is funded by property taxes, franchise 

and other fees. Special projects are funded 

through grants and loans. The City has an 

annual budget of approximately $8.9 million. 

The City employs a staff of 20 full time equivalent (FTE). This workforce broken out by 

department is as follows:  

● Administration: 4.5 FTE   

● Police: 6.0 FTE 

● Fire/EMS: 4.0 FTE  

● Public Works: 5.5 FTE  

The City also uses temporary staffing and contracted services for peak periods and specific 

functions.  

 

Mission 
The City of Oakridge is committed to the delivery of effective, courteous, and responsive 

services. Citizens and employees are treated with fairness, dignity, and respect. Civic and 

employee pride are accomplished through constant pursuit of excellence and a work force 

that values and reflects the diversity of the Oakridge community. 

 

Vision 
Oakridge, a safe close-knit town nestled in the beautiful Cascade foothills, surrounded by 

trails, where community isn’t just a word but a way of life. 

 



6 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Approved and Adopted 
This strategic plan was adopted and approved by the Oakridge City Council on [date] 

 

Kathy Holston, Mayor 

Paul Forcum 

Chrissy Hollett 

Dawn Kinyon 

Trisha Maxfield 

John McClelland 

Bobbie Whitney 

 

  

  



7 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

What is a Strategic Plan? 
Definitions 
Strategic planning is a process that many cities and organizations undertake on a regular 

basis. It is a way to set priorities and guide the work of the city, and the planning process 

allows the city to think through the opportunities and challenges for those priorities. The 

process creates an opportunity for the city to think about where it wants to be in the future and 

how to get there. A strategic plan details the goals and objectives of the city and how the 

goals will be advanced by meeting the objectives.  

 

Goals  
These are the specific purposes identified in the plan and the reasons why action is being 

taken. 

 

Objectives 
Objectives: These are the steps to be undertaken to achieve the goals.  

 

Metrics 
These are the concrete, measurable criteria that will be used to determine if objectives are 

being met. 

 

Context 
After 25 years without one, in 2013 Oakridge published a five-year strategic plan. Guided by 

the plan, the city council, staff, and citizens achieved a number of its stated goals, most 

notably improved access to healthcare facilities, water system improvements, and installing a 

pedestrian activated crosswalk across OR-58. But there is more work to do, and by building 

on the successes of the 2013 plan, the City can get beyond the “tipping point” on its road to 

becoming a thriving, vibrant community. This current plan will also function for a five-year 

period beginning in late 2020 and ending in late 2025. Many of the priorities identified for the 

2020-2025 plan reflect ongoing priorities that appeared in the previous plan and will likely 

continue into future plans. The goals and objectives identified for the 2020-2025 plan are 



8 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

intended to move those priorities forward. The plan creates a bridge between the current state 

of the community and where it can be in five years by taking the steps outlined in the plan. 

 

Plan Overview 
This document is divided into four main themes that encompass the goals of the city. These 

themes are Safe Community, Responsive Government, Strong Economy, and Community 

Livability. Each theme includes two to three goals that outline specific elements of the theme 

that the city can work toward in the next five years. Each goal then has one or more 

objectives that detail how the city will achieve its goal. For example, Goal One in the theme of 

Safe Community is “Ensure a safe community by partnering to protect people, property, and 

the environment.” The objectives below the goal outline the steps the city will take in order to 

achieve the goal and uphold the theme of Safe Community. Objectives are further broken 

down into tasks as described in the section Implementation - Scorecard on page 17. 

 

Internal and External Themes 
The theme areas for the Oakridge strategic plan fall into two categories: internal and external. 

The internal themes, Safe Community and Responsive Government, are within the scope of 

the city’s jurisdiction and budgetary authority. The external themes, Strong Economy and 

Community Livability, depend upon partnerships between the City and other entities. The 

City’s tasks for external themes focus on communication and development with partners, but 

these objectives cannot be accomplished by the City alone.   
  



9 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

2020 Planning Process 
This process has been guided by the Oakridge City Council, staff, and the mayor with the 

help of South Willamette Solutions (SWS) to design and develop the plan. The City of 

Oakridge hired SWS, a local community-based organization (CBO) with expertise in 

facilitation, to assist in the strategic planning process. The contract with SWS was made 

possible by a grant from The Ford Family Foundation.  

 

Council Work Sessions 
City Council convened in July 20201 for two initial four-hour work sessions facilitated by SWS 

to identify goals and objectives for the strategic plan. These work sessions were broadcast 

live on Facebook, and accommodations were made to allow residents to observe the 

sessions while maintaining social distancing protocols at City facilities. The first session 

focused on reviewing the previous strategic plan and brainstorming topics that would be 

important to include in the new plan. During the second session, council narrowed down their 

goals and objectives (see Council Goals, page 14). 

 

In August 2020, the City of Oakridge distributed a community survey in both electronic and 

paper formats asking residents to weigh in on the identified goals and objectives (see 

Community Survey section on page 11). SWS compiled the responses and facilitated a third 

work session with the council in September 2020.  

 

Committee Work Sessions 
In addition to discussion of community feedback, the city council approved the formation of an 

ad hoc committee by the City Administrator at the September 2020 meeting. The purpose of 

this committee was to carry forward the completion of this strategic plan by identifying tasks to 

achieve the strategic plan goals and objectives.  

 

                                              
1  The 2020 strategic planning process took place amid the global COVID-19 pandemic. Meetings were held 
online in the interest of public safety. 

 



10 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

The committee met via Zoom on October 16, October 26, and November 4, 2020. After the 

first two meetings, the committee completed take-home tasks associated with building out the 

scorecard. During the meetings, the committee brought forward their ideas for partnerships, 

priorities, and supplemental materials to support the strategic plan. At the meeting on 

November 4, the committee agreed to a timeline for reviewing a draft of the strategic plan in 

mid-November before final adoption by the city council in early December. 

 

The City Administrator invited a group of seven individuals who were active in relevant 

aspects of the Oakridge community to participate in this committee. Membership included a 

former mayor, two city councilors, the president of the Oakridge-Westfir chamber of 

commerce, director of the Lane Electric Cooperative, and two local business people.  

 

Committee Members: 
James Coey, City Council 2013-2015, City of Oakridge Mayor 2015-2018 

Lynda Kamerrer, President, Oakridge-Westfir Chamber of Commerce 

Joy Kingsbury, Real Estate Agent 

Dawn Kinyon, City Council 2019 to 2020 

Susan Knudsen-Obermeyer, Board Chair, Lane Electric Cooperative  

John McClelland, City Council 2020 to 2020 

Kerri VandenBerg, Willamette Mountain Mercantile/ Oakridge Bike Shop 

 

  



11 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Community Survey 
The public’s participation in this process has been of the utmost importance in order to ensure 

the plan addresses the needs and desires of its citizens. The community survey was a major 

element of public involvement in creating the 2020 Strategic Plan. Paper survey forms were 

mailed out to all Oakridge water bill recipients with additional paper forms made available at 

City Hall. The online version was made available on the City’s website and advertised on the 

City Facebook page.  

 

Prior to the September 2020 council work session, all councilors reviewed the compiled public 

comments. Public input was used to assess the community’s thoughts about whether or not 

the identified goals and objectives were community priorities on a 1-5 ranking (see chart 

below).  

 
Figure 1: Community Survey Rankings 

A total of 166 responses were returned to the city, with 133 paper forms completed and 33 

done online. Overall rankings ranged from 3.6 to 4.5. The Community Livability goals had 

slightly lower rankings than the other goals, although written comments suggest that these 

topics are very much on the minds of residents. 



12 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Overall Comments 
Written comments were used to inform tasks and to make revisions to wording of certain 

goals and objectives. Feedback from the community included many topics and attitudes that 

spanned the four theme areas, while others were specific to individual themes. The broad 

comments included concerns about: 

● Highway 58 

● Public Safety 

○  Speeding 

○  Drugs 

● Jobs 

● City beautification 

○  Code enforcement 

● Cost of utilities 

 

Safe Community 
Some of the major topics that emerged in the comments for the Safe Community theme were 

concerns about road safety on Highway 58 as well as other streets, drug enforcement, and 

mental health resources. 

● Ensure a safe community by partnering to protect people, property and the 

environment 

○  Score: 4.31 

● Provide efficient, sustainable services for public safety 

○  Score: 3.87 

 
Responsive Government 
Written comments for this section focused more on wording of goals and general concerns 

about city management. More responses were blank, and the responsible fiscal management 

goal had the highest rating of all goals across all theme areas. 

● In an open and transparent manner, effectively deliver services that citizens need, 

want, and support 

○  Score: 3.82 

● Provide facilities and infrastructure that support current and future needs 



13 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

○  Score: 3.91 

● Manage finances in a fiscally responsible manner ensuring long term financial stability 

○  Score: 4.51 

 
Strong Economy 
The written comments for Strong Economy showed a division on tourism, with more 

responses suggesting putting less emphasis on tourism than promoting tourism. City 

beautification and making sure the City does not try to take on tasks that are outside of its 

responsibilities also came up in the comments. 

● Improve the city’s economy by creating an atmosphere that is open to business 

○  Score: 4.21 

● Improve the City's economy by focusing on increasing living-wage jobs, training, and 

education opportunities for Oakridge residents 

○  Score: 4.29 

● Sustainably develop and market the recreational tourism industry in a way that benefits 

local business and residents 

○  Score: 3.76 

 
Community Livability 
Comments for Community Livability focused mostly on beautification and suggestions for 

recreational venues. 

● Work with community partners to provide recreation, education, and enrichment 

opportunities for citizens and youth 

○  Score: 3.88  

● Find creative ways to work with public and private partners to increase access to 

housing 

○  Score: 3.60  

● Seek opportunities to revitalize the City's business corridors and neighborhoods to 

provide safe and beautiful places to live and work 

○  Score: 3.70  



14 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Council Goals  
Prior to the start of the July 2020 work sessions, SWS sent a brief survey to councilors. The 

survey asked councilors to briefly describe their vision for Oakridge and identify 1-2 year 

goals, 3-5 year goals, and 5+ year goals. SWS reviewed responses to find thematic topics, 

which eventually formed the internal and external theme areas for the strategic plan goals 

(see page 8). The word cloud below shows the items that came up most in the council’s 

responses, with larger words showing more mentions. 

 

 

 
Figure 2: Concepts listed in pre-survey responses 

The survey responses included twelve items related to Safe Community, seven for 

Responsive Government, twelve for Strong Economy, and eight for Community Livability. 

These responses provided a baseline for starting the discussion at the first work session to 

identify specific goals and objectives. 

 



15 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

The council’s process led to the creation of the following goals and objectives at the end of 

the September work session: 

 

Safe Community 
● Goal #1: Ensure a safe community by partnering to protect people, property and the 

environment 

 

● Goal #2: Provide efficient, sustainable, and equitable public safety services including 

police, fire, and emergency medical services. 

 

Responsive Government 
● Goal #1: In an open and transparent manner, effectively deliver services that citizens 

need, want, and support. 

 

● Goal #2: Provide facilities and infrastructure that support current and future needs. 

 

● Goal #3: Manage finances in a fiscally responsible manner ensuring long term financial 

stability. 

 

Strong Economy 
● Goal #1: Improve the City's economy by focusing on increasing living-wage jobs, 

training, and education opportunities for Oakridge residents. 

 

● Goal #2: Sustainably develop and market the recreational tourism industry in a way 

that benefits local business and residents. 

 

● Goal #3: Improve the city’s economy by creating an atmosphere that is open to 

business. 

 

Community Livability 
● Goal #1: Work with community partners to provide recreation, education, and 

enrichment opportunities for citizens and youth. 

  



16 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

● Goal #2: Find creative ways to work with public and private partners to increase access 

to housing. 

 

● Goal #3: Seek opportunities to revitalize the City's business corridors and 

neighborhoods to provide safe and beautiful places to live and work. 

 

  



17 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Implementation - Scorecard 
Successful strategic planning includes a plan for 

implementation. The City of Oakridge plan to track 

progress is captured in a “scorecard.” This scorecard is 

an online spreadsheet that lists out the goals and 

objectives that the City developed and modified with 

input from Oakridge residents. Under each objective, 

specific tasks are identified. Each task includes a task 

description, a responsible party or parties for doing the 

task, a timeline for completing the task, and a metric that shows progress toward completion. 

 

The scorecard is intended to be a living document that city staff will keep up-to-date. The city 

administrator will provide progress reports based on the scorecard at city council meetings on 

a quarterly basis at minimum. These meetings are open to the public, and residents of 

Oakridge are encouraged to attend. While the scorecard is a tool for the city administrator, it 

is also a tool for the council as it makes decisions, i.e., does this decision advance us toward 

our goals? 

  











22 
 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Additional Resources 
A. Community Survey 

B. Survey Results 

C. Council Pre-Survey Summary 

D. Scorecard with Tasks 

E. Shared Resources Folder Map

 



Resource A: Community Survey  

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource A: Community Survey  

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 







Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

8. Safety of people & property is more important than transportation needs. (Someone answering the phone at PD). 
9. This is a ridiculous notion. Day late and a dollar short. 
10. Forget about lane reduction on Hwy 58. Bad idea! Apply more resources to maintaining and upgrading City streets. We have many in 

disrepair and hazardous. Some are tort claims waiting to happen... tripping hazards for peds. 
11. Winter wood smoke reduction would be greatly appreciated. Control speeding on residential streets as well as Hwy 58 - get our "speed 

trap" designation back. More code enforcement. 
12. Get Amtrak platform. 
13. Urgent care clinic. 
14. More radar patrol on Hills St. to slow traffic down 
15. Reinforce fire station, police stations, emergency medical support and illegal drug trafficing and control prosecution. 
16. More police officers and assignments of those police officers to be out there in the community. Monitor traffic much closer. Amtrack stop in 

Oakridge. 
17. Are you talking about ensuring we keep our police in these crazy times? Please clarify. Improving street safety would require more 

consequences for unsafe drivers... as in police handing out tickets. Was the avoidance of the word police intentional in the public safety 
area? Police presence reduces crime. Duh! 

18. Bring a judge for court here instead of habitual criminals going to Eugene to get a slap on the hand and released often beating the police 
back to Oakridge. Lock them up. Make us safer. 

19. For me #5 on improving street safety 
20. I would like to see Amtrak also running to Eugene and back from Oakridge. 
21. Street safety could be achieved with much street repair. Many residential streets are in VERY POOR condition and hard to drive on. 
22. The community as a whole would benefit from encouraging an inclusive approach to these things with support from the city. 
23. I suggest "efficient, sustainable and *equitable* services" 
24. Partners in these objectives should be law enforcement, Forest service, fish and game and groups that check on the welfare of our citizens. 
25. I would like to see progress in Oakridge; any type of progress would be wonderful.  Letting residents who have little vision for this 

community dictate the do nothing approach to improve this community is getting depressing. 
26. Do not privatize ambulance service!  Do not contract PD!  Keep our Dept services intact.  That is  to this community. 
27. It really does not matter how important these goals mean to people with a budget that will not foster implementation without additional 

service cost increases, new taxes or a community that believes there are personal agendas.  What goal is going to build trust? 
28. Clean up the drug houses and activity. It will lower crime rate and child abuse 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

29. Need more Bus times, or utilize Amtrak w a light rail & Train station in Oakridge.  Improving the commute options will boost our economy & 
increase Real Estate Value. Can we manage to put in a bike lane on 58 without narrowing the road ??? 

30. Be able to show how payment for services (i.e. water protects the community rather than just serves the city's needs. 
31. work to resolve financial issues so we can keep local public safety services. 
32. I am in favor of implementing the neighborhood watch or a similar community oriented policing program.  Once adequate funding is in 

place for a fully staffed police patrol unit, then I would like to see codes enforced uniformly.  Utilizing the Cahoots model for mental health 
services would be another great addition to the community and take the load off of police officers. 

33. No 
34. Enforce existing laws and codes. Get the police chief to stop stalling and do his job. No hiding behind, “ We need to change this and tweak 

that”. 
35. To open a conversation with the police and city re: support for social service related calls (mental health issues, homelessness, drug abuse, 

etc) Are there nonprofits in these fields that could expand services to Oakridge? 
36. The word SAFETY should be left out!  It just means more laws.  Where is Joe Alpio when this town need to stop the revolving door of justice. 
37. You need to properly fund the FD 
38. Strengthen your approach to environmental health and safety. 
39. Need tood coordination of volunteers that support city needs in time of emergencies i.e. winter of 2018 had volunteers but pretty poor  
40. Do NOT pursue private AMBULANCE service companies.  
41. DO NOT NARROW HWY 58  
42. improve preparedness for fire defense standards (voluntary) for care of fire sources.  
43. leave Hwy 58 as is.  
44. How about something remotely resembling traffic control on the [word unlegible] freeway through what is the principle business section of 

town? I am surprised there hasn't been more accidents already.  
45. Hire a full time experienced fire chief! Increase aggressive traffic control and speed enforcement on Hwy 58.  
46. More ways to help pedestrians safely cross Hwy 58 are needed - crosswalks? Traffic lights?  
47. Commercial street is a mess under the overpass speeding is a problem on this street. Sidewalks need to be replaced.  
48. Get tough on crime. Underage tagger could still be required to pay for and repair/ repaint tagged areas.  
49. How much what is current crime rate. Increase access to medical/ mental service - how much? How to judge success?  
50. Enforce speed limit on Hwy 58!  





Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

8. The City's finances need to be cared for/ over by honest, reliable officers. Not just 1 or 2 people. Our City's money has disappeared too 
many times. Why is this City always broke and having to raise water rates to the citizens? 

9. Stop collecting permit fees through an outside agency. 
10. Get a responsible City Council who really cares about the community and are not trying to better themselves. Take an honest look at reality 

and focus on the betterment of the City. 
11. I would like a clear definition of the word modernize as used here. What specifically would be changed and how? 
12. Issue more tickets to the aweful traffic speeding through our town it would sure add a lot of $$ to support more officers. 
13. As far as "modernizing City guiding documents", perhaps "simplifying" would be a better choice. 
14. Please don't raise water bill any higher. 
15. Start patrolling Hwy 58. It is rediculous how fast people drive on the Highway. It is not LOCALS either. 
16. "need, want and support" is an odd combination. Why not just "need"? 
17. Important and costly goals should be discussed and voted on by the entire city. 
18. Infrastructure subject to include narrowing highway 58 leaves little desire to rate this as .  We can Institute facilities with abatement 

ordinances being perused, holding commercial property owners accountable including bank owned residential. 
19. We need a larger police presence on 58. No new taxes. 
20. We need to ensure that our City Administrators are qualified and experienced , we need to banish ‘Nepotism’ and the prioritizing of special 

interests , create more avenues for community members to have a voice,  focus on development in BOTH West & East side of town 
21. educate us on how and why you are spending. 
22. Some of these areas have improved remarkably in the past year, but the burden of past problems with finances continues to impact what 

can be done to move the community forward.  Has any thought been given to using Telemed technology to reduce ambulance trips or other 
costly services from EMS? 

23. No 
24. Don’t spend money on new stuff. Fix the streets we have. 
25. Consider implementing an excise tax or visitor recreation tax. Currently revenue is not sustainable. 
26. [provide facilities and infrastructure] Goal not specific enough  
27. Don't spend money on things that are not critical.  
28. Work with the Dead Mt. Echo to increase level of news coverage and meaningful sharing of local events/ happenings. Missed opportunities 

here.  
29. What does "modernize" look like? What does "widely" look like? Too vague. There is no substance here.  





Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

5. Allow things to open so that the City can have a chance to thrive. 
6. Clean up Oakridge, enforce fines for dirty properties 
7. Working on economic development is essential to a livable community. Please focus on multiple-pronged business model - not just 

recreation. 
8. Provide lucrative tax incentives to attract year round businesses for living wage jobs. Less focus on seasonal and temporary jobs. 
9. We have enough tourists as it is. Too much traffic! Support the town support the citizens of Oakridge first! take care of your people first. We 

don't care about tourism. The Oakridge citizens need to support our town, look into that. 
10. The City government is NOT open to businesses due to the fact this would entail more observances and audits. The City is called 

"Brokeridge" for a reason. We would like to see that "all" businesses be taxed on local tourism not just a select few. 
11. Again clean air. 
12. Make business loans easy to get for Oakridge citizens. Give permit fee reduction to business owners who live in Oakridge. 
13. Places to eat. 
14. We have 2 reservoirs near that 20 years ago was used a lot and now there use is way down. Nered to figure out why and fix! 
15. Focus more on living wage jobs than the tourism. City government work to eliminate empty and or ran down buildings most likely not 

owned by local persons. 
16. [Develop recreational tourism] No thank you! I am a homeowner. I live next to the salmon creek trails and the tourist season is when I can't/ 

won't use them due to trash, loose aggressive dogs and human feces everywhere around these campsites that are everywhere, clean it up/ 
find this before you invite more people in please. 

17. Provide living wage job #1 period. 
18. Encourage recreational tourism and lodging in the area! 
19. We need recreational tourism to survive financially and this needs to be communicated to the community at large as without it we have no 

resources. 
20. I get that these goals are deliberately broad, but "creating an atmosphere that is open to business" is too vague. Repeating "atmosphere" in 

the objective shows that the goal needs better articulation. 
21. less talk, more action 
22. Struggling existing businesses could benefit by providing them with business assessors and counselors. 
23. Tourism is not citizens top priority.  This survey is very leading to that and doesn’t allow a true opinion if citizens do not agree with 

prioritizing tourism.  



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

24. The economic sustainability of Oakridge will come as focus is put forward on our city street repairs, up lift of our community members with 
respecting every member has "skin in the game"! 

25. Tourism isn’t the only answer. Sadly the industrial park hadn’t delivered. Twenty years of work and volunteering could not replace the 
logging jobs. Our town is slowly dying. 

26. How about an LCC satellite campus with classes , job training, and a space for other events??? 
27. The business of tourism does not enhance the quality of life in Oakridge for most local residents. Those who move here gung ho on building 

tourism have very little respect for those who've lived here for years. How that works for mutual benefit is difficult to determine. 
28. Keep Hwy58 4 lanes 
29. sell excess properties 
30. The city is certainly capable and in control of creating an atmosphere that is open and welcoming to business development.  The private 

sector has the power to set wages and select workers that meet their needs.  It is not the city's responsibility to provide training and 
education, but rather to create relationships with educational institutions and assist with problem solving to make those services accessible 
for all. Citizens have to play a role in taking the initiative to start businesses, come up with innovations that make a successful product or 
service, and work in tandem with the city to create a thriving business environment.  Recreational tourism seems to be sustaining on its 
own.  Market forces during the Covid pandemic are instructive.  Outdoor recreation gear sales are up 400% and RV sales and rentals are up 
650% according to Travel Oregon.  If Oakridge is selling what they are buying between May and October then businesses will benefit.  In the 
winter months locals don't go out as much and neither do visitors.  There is no easy solution to year round sustainable tourism in Oakridge, 
but there needs to be more of a draw before businesses can afford to be open in the low season.  

31. Oakridge needs jobs!!! 
32. No 
33. I would love for Oakridge to really work out a plan that puts locals first. Tourism based economies can be degrading. 

https://www.thecut.com/2019/02/who-killed-tulum.html 
34. Need something other than what is here.  There are natural resources that are not being used.  Timber, water, hunting fishing to name a 

few.  Timber is rotting and people are worrying about fires.  When the forests were shout down, the big fires started.  Loggers and the 
Forest service us to keep the fires smaller by initial attacks.  The spotted owl was a big lie set up by the environmentalist to break small 
towns like Oakridge. 

35. There is no true industry or way to generate funds. Without that everything else is a dream. 
36. Engage with community partners and stakeholders to improve services for struggling families, and businesses. 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

37. Need to support the businesses that are here. Be more aware of needs - both current and future - and make more responsible choices - i.e. 
the pot growing businesses of past few years were a real bomb and scam.  

38. Hopefully covid-19 will be gone by this time - we don't want tourists during the pandemic  
39. More art/ more theme shopping to attract more than the "hit and run" tourist. Example - Joseph, OR (bronze factory)  
40. Oakrdige does nto make a very positive first impression on people - it looks junky.  
41. Focus on Oakridge as a mecca for outdoor activities & recreation - biking, hiking, river rafting, etc. Focus on the small town quality of life 

and the superb access to the outdoors when appealing to new businesses and residents. Focus on sustainability and environmental 
stewardship. It would be very important that the businesses or industries recruited be environmentally friendly. 2) The rest area and kiosk 
at Greenwaters Park could be a great asset to let the travelers know what Oakridge offers. A volunteer or at least literature at the kiosk 
would be great.  

42. So few family restaurants are left here. There are no more activity venues for teens or families. No swimming places some years.  
43. City of Leavenworth, WA didn't happen overnight.  
44. What does atmosphere mean? good goal. How much. How do we know if you are succeding? 1% increase, 10% increase, 100% increase?  

  





Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

Themes: 

Raw responses: 

1. How about a water play installation at greenwaters? 
2. Fix the basketball court in Salmon Creek park 
3. Look into community support shelters, to make it possible for the homeless to have safe and warm housing. 
4. Keep all weeds down in the City of Oakridge 
5. Leave Hwy 58 four lanes alone 
6. A new WAC. Partnership with the highschool for Seniors. 
7. Clean up Oakridge, enforce fines, make changes 
8. We'll never get families to live in community where there is nothing available for children. Enforce removal of dangerous, unsightly property 

(home on Riverview) hoarded garbage, weeds and grass 3 ft tall. Do not continue to allow rentals as Airbnb (short term rentals). Very few 
homes available for reasonable rent for mid to low income families. 

9. (enrichment opportunities for youth) That is what school is for. Parks are important, but our City looks like a dump when businesses and 
homes are allowed to have junk piled up and not maintain yards. 

10. Continue storefront improvements. 
11. High visibility Hwy advertising for local businesses - show City supports local owned businesses. 
12. Get the "pajama boys" off the couch. Deny access to government benefits to those able to work. Mandatory drug testing to those who 

apply for benefits. 
13. We need more restaurants for people to eat. 
14. Need parks inside City Limits that gives kids a variety of things to do such as swimming pool, a field for sports, tennis courts, basketball ect! 
15. More entertainment opportunities for the youth: i.e. bowling, skating, theater, arcade, etc. 
16. We definitely need things for our citizens to do. There used to be a theater, skating, bowling, etc. 
17. [enrichment opportunities for citizens and youth] school already working on these programs 
18. First goal is an odd combination of general and specific. Why focus on childcare here? Sounds like the ghost of the old WAC! Speaking of 

which, a real community center wouldn't be a terrible thing to include here. 
19. provide EQUAL levels of priority vice specific focus for specific areas 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

20. "Corridors" also includes Hwy 58 and in its revitalization safety should be number one. Therefore improving the existing sidewalks with 
additional midway crossings can beautify that "business corridor" sufficiently to attract economic growth. 

21. We DESPERATELY need a Recreation Center for our town, Children & Adults, across the lifespan , need a place to exercise and gather (when 
safe), maybe a childcare facility can be part of the plan.  For the HEALTH of our community, please ! 

22. Work to attract business that is NEEDED in Oakridge. 
23. Keep Hwy58 4 lanes 
24. ask businesses to refresh their curb appeal. provide more incentive. 
25. Professional childcare is an essential but missing link in Oakridge. Everyone seems to want these enrichment activities, but will they pay a 

fee for them or support fundraising to build this infrastructure?  The city needs a strong source of revenue in order to offer the above 
amenities.  I don't think access to housing is the issue.  The inventory of housing lacks a range of pricing and configurations.  There are no 
condos, there are no tiny house clusters, and there are a number of dilapidated units that need a visit from the code enforcement team.  I 
believe there is a strong demand for seasonal housing that is not being met.  I would like to see an incentive program for 
developers/builders with input and guidance of the community.  All along First Street for example there could be solar power installations 
because of the open sky.  Cottage communities could be encouraged to replace some substandard housing in several areas.  There are 
plenty of creative ways to add housing that could be built in Oakridge.  A great opportunity was lost when the council voted against option 1 
in the recent TSP proposal.  That would have enhanced the hwy 58 corridor substantially.  There are others in the community that support 
moving Oakridge forward to be a beautiful and thriving city.  The city parks and future development of the OIP Mill Park have great 
potential, but a tiny budget.  During business closures and Covid restrictions the rest area at Greenwaters park seems very busy.  There is 
one rusty donation box by the community building.  

26. Jobs need to come first!!! 
27. No 
28. Again, my street is full of holes. No new stuff until we fix the old stuff. 
29. Support for community food and agriculture. 
30. Education and schools have been teaching and indoctrinating students today and have been fore a long time. 
31. Without funding there is no reason to dream about anything else 
32. Enrichment opportunities should focus on sustainable ways of living, living with the forest, and enrichment towards an overall sense of 

community. 
33. Dog Park!  





Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

● No privatization of services (1) 

Raw responses: 

1. Need to see police out and around give a few tickets for speeders on Highway 58 and 1st. St. and other streets 
2. What about the meth problem? Increase police - start ridding the town of this!! 
3. Have the city workers actually work instead of standing around and twiddle their thumbs. Oakridge lots and streets look like s***! When 

1st. moved here in 96 Oakridge was beautiful now looks like a slum town. 
4. Youth activity Centers! Youth therapy/ youth gardening/ planting events. 
5. Fix the streets, soon we will have dirt roads again. Then we can ride horses. Make everything look more upscale, like Lowell. Force new 

businesses to build better buildings or storefronts. 
6. I have heard this same song for 30 years and there has been no real progress. Seeing is beliving. 
7. Develop more Senior programs and activities. 
8. Lots of people love Oakrdige, more food/ dring/ lodging options. Take advantage of tourism, make them stop, not drive through. 
9. Focus on public safety, upgrading police and taking criminals off the street!!! Bring quality jobs to the community. Support logging activities 

in the national forest. 
10. We need Communicated to with the City on things that the City decided to do without our Input. Notify us on things are going on. Let us 

know. 
11. Your doing a Great Job 
12. Leave Hwy 58 four lanes alone. Fix our or some of the side streets. Make easier for trucks to stop and park. 
13. Do something about all of the dumping, do something that makes owners accountable for upkeep fo their rental properties. 
14. Improve the look of all store fronts - empty or not. Pick a theme. 
15. Clean up entire town including neighborhoods. If there are not ordinances in place + vote some in. Recruit volunteers to help City solve this 

issue. Almost every street in any neighborhood has one or more unsightly or even unsafe homes. 
16. We need more public Safety! More traffic officers, lets slow the speed back down to 35mph, get money for that by giving tickets to 

speeders. 
17. People are not going to want to live and work here if the local County and State police will not do anything about the crime that spawns 

from methamphetamine and heroin use. We as citizens face harsher penalties for protecting our community than these tweakers face for 
their constant recidivism. This, in my and others opinion, is the biggest problem we face. 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

18. Please repair/ replace damaged guardrails that have been damaged for years. There aren't many... 
19. You should take the Oakridge citizens feedback to heart. We need to rely on each other like we did during the snowpocalypse. We need a 

sense of real community please support the citizens. Not tourism our tourists worry about the citizens first!! 
20. No One Lane 58 
21. Noise pollution is getting bad, too much loud music or noise is disruptive to a neighborhood. Perhaps fines or citations would help stop it. 
22. Employment for residents would be the top thing for me. 
23. City streets are in terrible condition - needs replacing in many areas. 
24. Random drug testing on City employees on those applying for benefits. Criminal background checks on same. 
25. A traffic light at Hwy 58 and W 2nd. 
26. This is a small city with the same problems most cities have. While these are admirable they will most likely cost more money then they will 

bring in. 
27. Safety and clean up of downtown. Increase police presence to stop crime. 
28. Find out why cancer rate is so high in Oakridge. 
29. This is a good fluffy survey, but it doesn't really say anything. We need to improve employment opportunities in town, perhaps some form 

of manufacturing, maybe masks. We also need something more than biking as a theme for our town. We need a theme for each season. 
Perhaps we could do something for Easter, then Summer sports, then 4th of July celebration, then something for Halloween, then 
Thanksgiving, then Christmas. Sure we need to keep improving the quality of life in this town, but we need to improve the employment 
opportunities to have the funds to do that. Also, I sort of understand why our water cost is so high. Are we not about out of the hole, with 
the mess we had with the water loan? Did the City just decide they would keep the money, because they could make a better decision on 
how to spend, our money, than we possibly could? In case you haven't noticed nobody waters their lawns, because it is too expensive. This 
town will never look like it is a thriving town, until the leaders do something to give the people in this town some hope. 

30. More restaurants like pizza, I hope, Little Caesars, what ever you can find. 
31. Reduce water rates. Christmas valley residents pay $52 a month for all their water they can use. Lower rates would allow residents to help 

keep property beautiful. This would make it more attractive town to live in. 
32. City Council not focusing on their own issues. Focus on all of the issues on this paper and no personal agendas. City to manage the funds of 

this community in a professional manner. City government focus on professional management of City funds and not on personal agendas. 
Listen to what the community wants and needs! 

33. Tiered water and sewage usage charges. 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

34. We need someone to have the job of encouraging or making people have clean camps on our public trail areas. I don't mind people 
camping until they are leaving behind trash drug paraphanilia, pile of human waste etc! There seems to be no one punishing these slobs for 
trashing our otherwise beautiful natural areas when they come to visit, making it unusable for permanent residents, please help ensure it is 
livable for residents before encouraging more visitors, please! 

35. More affordable utilities. Help citizens fix homes to be more safe and energy efficient. 
36. Most important problem is Crime and Drugs. No one is safe here anymore. 
37. Infrastructure includes the water/ sewer plant facilities that must not only be sufficiently maintained but constantly upgraded...especially as 

the City grows in population 
38. Under theme area strong economy - I commute to Cottage Grove for Work. When I come home at 3:30 AM there are always many trucks 

parked along Hwy 58. I think the Industrial Park area would be a perfect spot for a full blown truck stop/ campus area. Diner, store, 
showers, rec room, truck/ tire shop. It would cost a ton to start up, but it would be very heavily used. 

39. Thank you for your interest in these goals. Oh, dog park area for small dogs. I have 4 and they are bored. 
40. These are all good goals, but the survey is somewhat flawed. Most sensible folk will approve all of these goals, but the survey won't show 

whether they consider them to be the most important goals for the city (this last section isn't adequate to remedy that). 
41. Increase police presence and have them interact with our citizens in a positive helpful manner. 
42. Over the next 5 yrs... I would like to encourage city council ( including Mayor) to treat their position as not just a term to complete.  To 

comprehend what is left behind can be manipulated by a new council so take community input to heart.  Acknowledge the history of long 
term residency counts in the "revitalization" of a modernized rural community-based where some things should remain as-is. Who wants a 
stranger coming in and rearranging their house!?! 

43. Do not screw up Hwy 58. Add a sidewalk in the north side to make it safer for pedestrians. Do not let Ed King destroy TV Butte. Make the 
medical clinic by Postal Pharmacy repaint their building. Bright blue is beyond offensive. 

44. -Improve Transportation for Commuters. Perhaps a Light Rail/Train that runs to Eugene Springfield & LaPine , along the railroad track. Or at 
least more bus routes/ times. 
-Create a Rec Center/YMCA or partner w LCC to create a satellite campus w Rec Center features! 
-create a Pedestrian bridge at Osprey park linking West Oakridge to the network of Trails and creating a connection to Uptown OR create an 
easement thru the Gravel Pit property to do the same. 
- takeover the abandoned and Unsafe properties that create Hazards & lower property values 

45. Keep Hwy58 4 lanes 
46. keep local police fire ambulance services 



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

47. Please utilize surveys and data that are accurate and scientifically designed when making decisions.  If the council is using anecdotal 
evidence or social media comments as a resource on some issues, then those data points need to be weighted properly against reliable and 
valid sources of information.  I believe LCOG and the University of Oregon.would be able to help design information gathering methods that 
would produce not only a representative sample of the citizens of Oakridge, but data that will instill confidence in government decisions.   

48. Again...... Oakridge needs real jobs. Tourism is fine but cannot sustain this town. 
49. This town is one big example of broken window syndrome. Clean it up, fix the streets, condemn the drug houses. “Poor” does not have to 

mean “dirty and dangerous”. 
50. Infrastructure—water 

Green energy, self-sufficiency 
51. Oakridge AIN'T anymore.  Oakridge will never be the oakridge it was until something rely changes, the dead horse has been beaten scene 

the mills closed down, 
52. A strategic plan to decarbonize the city’s buildings and fleet. A strategic plan to become a model of sustainability tourism community. 
53. NEVER NARROW HWY 58  
54. QUIT TRYING TO BE A LITTLE EUGENE  
55. Assisted living for seniors and local transportation for shopping  
56. All streets repaired/ repaved and assessing businesses that use residential streets as business access rd. They should be financially 

responsible for up keep of the road or not ust it for their business.  
57. Work on maintaining our roads and drainage of rain water on Elder st.  
58. Oakridge offers affordable housing for retirees. Focus on the need of those who retire with moderate income. 1. Small sized homes with 

quality services (heating, water) 2. Improve first line care geriatrc/ therapy services. 3. Build a hospice facility. Goal: Attract retired person of 
moderate wealth wo will contribute skills/ talent supporting city services and local tax base  

59. As the owner of the house on school st. Oakridge is a nice place but as a former Los Angles CA plumbers inspector and code enforcement 
officer to kep things all right. Some people in Oakridge as in places all over the state seems like people don't abide in what it takes to make 
a property nice you need to do things or it becomes terrible. You need a real Code Enforcement officer in Oakridge.  

60. We've been here two + years and love it!  
61. Focus on details - noxious weeds, fire hydrant clearing, accumulation of junk/ cars/ etc. in yards, businesses. Understand that water rates 

are an issue, but look at providing incentives for people to "clean up/ green up." There are missed opportunities to work with the forest 
service, school district and ODFW. Once again - appearances - just no sense of pride in evidence.  



Resource B: Survey Results 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

62. Lower the crime. Drug use & stealing for their habits. Promote for new businesses! Lower water bills, the price is ridiculous compared to 
other cities!  

63. 1) Recycling! If not curbside at least place receptacles around town. Also, educate visitors about how and where to take cans and bottles 
with a deposit on them instead of throwing them away. Many visitors are not families familiar with the deposit/ return system. 
2) Support public art - more murals, sculptures, etc. These are fiscally challenging times, but this could still be a goal by enlisting students, 
local volunteers, etc. Perhaps the City could advise local artists on how to apply for grants through the state, Oregon Travel, etc. 
3) Better signage on Hwy 58 to direct travelers/ visitors to Uptown/ Old Town. 
Thank you for asking for our opinion!  

64. All of these goals seem important to me. St. Vinnies is a good organization to partner with. A public swimming pool would be great for kids. 
City support for the celebrate recovery group which is soon to start. Strong support for our EMTs, police & firemen. Promote a spirit of pride 
for our community.  

65. Increase living wage jobs 30%, increase housing 10%, increase mental health, medical services 50%, increase tourism 20%. Patch all holes in 
roads within 30 days. Slow traffic down buy increasing enforcement 25%. Improve 10% of city roads and sidewalks. Bring fiber optic/ natural 
gas into town.  

66. Promote more festivals to greenwaters park.  

 

 
 



Resource C: Council Pre-Survey Summary 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

 



Resource C: Council Pre-Survey Summary 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource D: Scorecard with Tasks 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 



Resource E: Shared Resources Folder Map 

City of Oakridge Strategic Plan 2020-2025 

One idea that came out of the ad hoc committee meetings was to create a framework for 
collecting resources to be shared with partners of the City, particulary for strategic goals that 
depend on engagement with private and non-profit organizations. This screenshot shows the 
Google Drive file folder organization. 
 
 

 



   1 

 
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE:   Technology has become an everyday part of the workplace.  Computers and the internet are 
now standard workplace tools.  In a very short span of time, social media has evolved from a 
technological fad to a potentially long-term, effective communication option for cities.  Cities should 
develop a comprehensive email and social media use policy to manage legal risks such as violations of 
public records law and protections on free speech.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None. 
 
 
OPTIONS:  (1) Approve Resolution 24-2020.  
        (2) Do not approve Resolution 24-2020. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends option 1. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move we approve Resolution 24-2020, a resolution adopting the 
City of Oakridge Social Media Policy.   

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title:  City of Oakridge Social 
Media Policy 
 
 
 
Proposed Council Action: A motion from 
the floor to approve Resolution 24-2020.  
 

Agenda Item No: 13.2 
 
Exhibits: (1) Resolution 24-2020 
                 (2) Social Media Policy 
                  
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
 



CITY OF OAKRIDGE 
 

RES.  24-2020 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY FOR THE USE OF SOCIAL 
MEDIA FOR CITY BUSINESS. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Oakridge, Oregon ("City") recognizes the need for use of social media to promote 
public awareness and boost participation of the City's programs, policies and services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes the inexpensive and effective method and popularity of the use of 
various social media platforms, including (but not limited to) Facebook, YouTube, LinkedIn, Instagram, or 
Flickr, (collectively "Social Media") by and amongst City elected officials and officers, City employees, 
and the public; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that a Social Media Policy provides greater efficiency in government 
by outlining the procedure and expectations of the City's use and presence on Social Media; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that adopting a Social Media Policy serves a municipal and 
public purpose,  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF OAKRIDGE AS FOLLOWS:   
 
Section 1. Adoption of City Social Media Policy.  
 
The City Council hereby adopts the City's Social Media Policy, attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein.  
 
Section 2. Effective Date.  
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon final adoption by the City Council. 
           .  
 
PRESENTED AND PASSED this 3rd day of December, 2020.  
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Jackie Sims, Assistant City Recorder  
 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor this _________________(date). 
 
_________________________________________ 
Kathy Holston, Mayor  
 





FOREWORD 

Technology has become an everyday part of the workplace.  Computers and the internet are now 
standard workplace tools.  In a very short span of time, social media has evolved from a 
technological fad to a potentially long-term, effective communication option for cities.  The City 
of Oakridge desires to develop a comprehensive email and social media use policy to manage 
legal risks such as violations of public records law and protections on free speech.  This policy 
does not address the off-duty private use of email and social media accounts that does not relate 
to public business.  However, emails and social media posts are considered public records if they 
relate to the city’s business regardless if the email is sent from, or the social media is posted from 
a private account.  Thus, these public records must be properly retained pursuant to the city’s 
records retention policy.  Additionally, cities may not restrict an individual’s First Amendment 
free speech rights by regulating the content of their social media posts.  The City of Oakridge 
may, however, regulate the time, place, and manner in which free speech is permitted and thus, 
manage public comments on the city’s social media accounts accordingly. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   2 

 



MODEL EMAIL AND SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

Part I: Email 

Use 

1. Each staff member and official will be assigned a unique email address that is to be used 
while conducting city business via email.  The unique email address assigned to an employee 
is the property of the city.  An individual may only use their assigned email address while 
employed by the city. 
 

2. The city retains the right to intercept, monitor, review and disclose any and all messages 
composed, sent or received. 
 

3. All email systems are city property.  All messages stored on city systems or composed, sent 
or received by any staff or official are the property of the city.  Furthermore, all messages 
composed, sent or received by any person using city-provided equipment are property of the 
city.  Emails are not the property of any employee or official. 
 

4. Email systems are intended to be used primarily for business purposes.  Any personal use 
must not interfere with normal business activities, must not involve solicitation, and must not 
be associated with any for-profit business activity. 1  All messages sent by email are city 
records.  
 

5. The use of privately owned email accounts for sending and receiving work related email 
messages is highly discouraged.  However, if these resources are used for work-related 
purposes, the user must transfer all work-related messages to a city-owned system or network 
and must realize that these private accounts may be subject to public disclosure and retention 
requirements.  
 

6. All communications via email in connection with the transaction of public business constitute 
public records except under certain circumstances.  Electronic communications, like other 
public records, must be available upon request to any individual, agency or others outside the 
organization, unless the information is legally exempt from disclosure. 
 

7. Except as specifically designated below, city staff and officials are prohibited from using 
City email accounts to send or receive: 
 

a. Information about actual or potential claims and litigation involving the city; 
 

b. The intellectual property of others, without written permission; 
 

c. Photographs of employees or members of the public, without written permission; 
 

1 Cities who wish to limit email use to business purposes only should replace this language with the following: 
“Email systems are to be used for business purposes only.  Personal use of city email systems is strictly prohibited.” 

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   3 

 



d. Any personal, sensitive or confidential information; 
 

e. Computer viruses or other harmful programs; 
 

f. “Chain letters” or junk mail; 
 

g. Material or comments that are derogatory to any individual or group, or of a 
defamatory, threatening or harassing nature; 
 

h. Racist, sexist and other disparaging language about a group of people; 
 

i. Obscene, pornographic, offensive or illegal materials or links; 
 

j. Sexual comments about, or directed to, anyone; or 
 

k. Any communication for any other purpose which is illegal, against city policy, or 
contrary to the city’s interest.  
 

This prohibition does not apply to attorney-client communications between city staff and 
officials and the city attorney or other city staff and officials designated to assist with legal 
matters. 

Records Retention: 

1. The city must maintain and preserve records in compliance with the Oregon Public Records 
Law.   The Public Records Law applies regardless of whether the email communication is 
sent from a public or private email address.  
 

2. The retention of records stored in electronic systems, including email, is governed by the 
city’s retention schedule and OAR Chapter 166, Division 200.  If you have a question 
regarding the retention of a record, please contact the city recorder. 
 

3. An email inbox should not be used for storage.  The email should be printed or stored 
electronically and put into the appropriate file.  However, email related to a current project or 
issue may be retained on the system as a reference tool.  Once the project is completed or the 
issue resolved, the user should transfer all relevant email to the appropriate file and delete the 
email from their inbox. 
 

Security Precautions 

1. Viruses and other malicious code can spread quickly if appropriate precautions are not taken: 
 

a. Be suspicious of messages sent by people not known by you. 
 

b. Do not open attachments unless they were anticipated by you. 
 

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   4 

 



c. Disable features in emails that automatically preview messages before opening them. 
 

d. Do not forward chain letters; simply delete them. 
 

Any staff member in violation of this email policy is subject to disciplinary action pursuant 
to the city’s personnel manual, including but not necessarily limited to termination. 

  

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   5 

 



Part II – Social Media 

Use  

1. “Social media” includes blogs, Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and other similar accounts. 
 

2. The city shall identify those employees authorized to use social media on behalf of the city. 
Only those employees who are authorized shall engage in social media activities on behalf of 
the city.  The city manager shall maintain a list of authorized social media users. 
 

3. All social media accounts shall be created using a city-issued email address, whenever 
possible.2  This will ensure that: 
 

a. Personal and professional communications are separated; 
 

b. The city can back up public conversations because the city owns and controls the 
email address; 
 

c. The city can access the site when the employee is out on vacation or otherwise away 
from the office or leaves employment with the city; and 
 

d. The city can determine that the site is legitimately the city’s and not a rogue site 
generated from a private email address. 
 

4. The city shall notify users and visitors to the social media site that the purpose of the site is to 
facilitate communication between the city and the public.  Each site shall contain the 
following message: 
 

This site is created by the city of Oakridge.  This site is intended to serve as a 
mechanism for communication between the public and the city of Oakridge on all 
topics relevant to city business.  The city of Oakridge reserves the right to 
remove comments or postings that violate any applicable laws.  A list of content 
that will be removed may be viewed at: 
https://www.ci.oakridge.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/administrative ser
vices/page/14121/social media user guidelines.pdf.  Postings to this site are 
public records of the city of Oakridge and may be subject to disclosure under the 
Oregon Public Records Law.  
 
The city of Oakridge does not endorse or sponsor any advertising posted by the 
social media host, that the social media is a private site, or the privacy terms of 
the site apply.  The city of Oakridge does not guarantee reliability and accuracy 
of any third-party links. 

2 Some social media sites, such as Facebook, prohibit creation of a government “page” without the use of a personal 
account. In those instances, the city should provide a process for transition of page management in the event the 
person holding the primary personal account associated with the page leaves the city.  

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   6 

 



5. Where possible, all social media sites will display the city’s logo for consistency and 
authenticity.  
 

6. Social media posts are considered public records if posts are made on an official city 
account; or  on a city staff member or official’s private account which makes or receives 
comments on city matters. 
 

7. The city and its employees and officials shall not discriminate against public speech based on 
content or viewpoint.  The city, its staff and its officials may not engage in viewpoint 
discrimination.  All persons who wish to “friend,” “follow,” “re-tweet,” etc. must be allowed 
to do so.  
 

8. The following content posted by the public may be removed: 
 

a. Comments not topically related to the particular article being commented upon; 
 

b. Comments in support of or opposition to political campaigns or ballot measures; 
 

c. Profane language or content; 
 

d. Content that promotes, fosters or perpetuates discrimination upon the basis on race, 
religion, gender, gender identity, marital status, familial status, national origin, age, 
mental or physical disability, sexual orientation, source of income, or other protected 
status under applicable law; 
 

e. Inappropriate sexual content or links to inappropriate sexual content; 
 

f. Solicitations of commerce, e.g. , ads; 
 

g. Conduct or encouragement of illegal activity; 
 

h. Private and confidential information; 
 

i. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public or public 
systems; or 
 

j. Content that violates a legal ownership interest of any other party. 
 

These guidelines shall be displayed to all users or made available by hyperlink.  Any content 
removed must be retained, including the time, date and identity of the poster when available. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   7 

 



Personal Social Media Accounts  
 

Elected officials are not permitted to use their personal social media account as an extension 
of their office to carry out their official duties or solicit public views about support. 
 
All city officials and employees may have personal social media sites. These sites should 
remain personal in nature and be used to share personal opinions or non-work related 
information. Following this principle helps ensure a distinction between sharing 
personal and city views. 
 
City officials and employees must never use their city e-mail account or password in 
conjunction with a social media site. The following guidance is for agency employees 
who decide to have a personal social media or who decide to comment on posts about 
official city business: 
1. State your name and, if relevant, role, when discussing agency business; 
2. Use a disclaimer such as: “The postings on this site are my own and don’t reflect or 
represent the opinions of the agency for which I work.” 

 
If social media is used for official agency business, the entire agency site, regardless of 
any personal views, is subject to best practice guidelines and standards. 

 

Records Retention 

1. The city must maintain and preserve social media records in compliance with the Oregon 
Public Records Law.  The Public Records Law applies regardless of whether the social media 
site is hosted by the city or a third party.  
 

2. Those engaged in social media activities must be familiar with the city’s records retention 
schedule.  Any posted original content that is not a copy of a preexisting city record must be 
captured and retained by saving a copy and providing it to the city’s records custodian.  
 

3. Social media content shall be retained by composing and retaining message in local software 
and noting the time and date posted, or by capturing screenshots of the post once it is on the 
page.3 
 

4. Non-Original Social Media Content Maintained Elsewhere 
Any posted content that is a copy of a city record that exists in another location does not need 
to be separately preserved, provided that the original content is being retained in compliance 
with the appropriate city retention schedule and media preservation requirements. 
Employees should use social media applications exclusively as a mechanism for providing 
the public with links or references to content that is maintained as an official city record 
elsewhere.  Links or references posted to social media accounts are considered convenience 

3 The city may utilize third party software that can coordinate multiple social media accounts and capture social 
media content automatically for a city. 

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   8 

 



copies which need to be retained only “as needed” or “until superseded.” 
 

5. Original Social Media Content 
Any posted original content that constitutes a city record and that is not preserved and 
retained elsewhere in compliance with the appropriate city retention schedule, must be 
captured by the city and retained according to the appropriate schedule and preservation 
requirements.  The person who posts the content is responsible for retaining and preserving 
the record.  
 

a. Speeches/Statements/News Releases/Program Activity Records 
Content that contains written or photographed accounts of a city event, or summary of 
such events posted to social media are considered statements and reports for retention 
purposes and should be retained generally for two years from the time they are 
“published.”  If these posts contain policy or historically significant content, they 
must be retained permanently. 
 

b. Correspondence 
Incoming messages from the public that arrive via the city’s social media account 
should be treated as correspondence.  Messages completely unrelated to the city’s 
activities does not need to be retained.  If the message relates to the city’s activities or 
functions, it must be captured and retained per the retention category that most 
closely corresponds to the content of the message.  Staff are advised to respond to 
correspondence via email or other “offline” messaging methods and if possible, 
communicate directly with the individual and maintain that correspondence. 
 

c. Content Associated with a Specific Function or Activity 
Information received from the public in response to social media posts used as a 
public entry point to solicit specific information—such as conducting a poll or to 
launch a process or placing an order—should be retained along with other records 
associated with that function or activity using the appropriate retention schedule. 

Any staff member in violation of this social media policy is subject to disciplinary action 
pursuant to the city’s personnel manual, including but not necessarily limited to 
termination. 
 

 

 

 
 

Email and Social Media Policy –  CIty of Oakridge   9 

 



   1 

  
 
 
 
                                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ISSUE:  The Oakridge Planning Commission is seated with seven citizens. Currently five seats 
are filled. Two commissioners have terms expiring this year, giving a total of four vacancies.  
Three of these vacancies have a four-year term and one vacancy a three-year term. The city 
council has three applications to review.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
OPTIONS:  1. Appoint applicant(s) to fill the vacant seats.  
                    2. Do not appoint applicant(s) to fill the vacant seats.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The staff recommends option 1.   
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  I move that we appoint _________to serve as an Oakridge 
Planning Commissioner for a _____-year term.  
 
 
 
Applicants: 
 
George Custer (sitting commissioner) – desire four-year term 
Rick Wiemholt (sitting commissioner) – desires four-year term 
Dan Barclay – desires four-year term 
 

Business of the City Council 
City of Oakridge, Oregon 

December 3, 2020 
 

Agenda Title: Consider appointment of  
citizens to Planning Commission vacancies. 
 
 
Proposed Council Action:  A motion from 
the floor to appoint applicant(s) into the 
vacant positions.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item No:  15.1 
 
Exhibits: Submitted Applications  
 
 
Agenda Bill Author: Bryan Cutchen 
City Administrator: Bryan Cutchen 






















